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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the main board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will

be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this

report.

This report, for which the directors of North Asia Strategic Holdings
Limited (the “Directors” or the “Board”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to North
Asia Strategic Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make

any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DR S

A summary of the results of the assets,

as appropriate,

liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
is set out below. The amounts for each year
in the five year financial summary have been re-presented

RIDRBEE

TXEHIAEERBERAVRFEZEE - B
EREREE(DREBETELERVBR
ERTESEHHHE) -
EUHBEHRE.SFRERFARELERBZ

FEF

,,,,,,, | B A
for the effects of the retrospective changes in the accounting SHEEENEBFEMENZS] - FHEERH
for discontinued operation during the year, as detailed in BHREME12 -
note 12 to the financial statements.

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=t—HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010
—T—=F ZT—=F Z=——F ZZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (&%) (=51) (zE51)
Revenue A 907,690 733,955 892,404 1,565,247 775,870
Profit/(loss) before tax  Fr#iADG F), (E51E) 12,988 (33,936) (110,542) 58,978 38,436
Income tax credit/ FiskiE e,/
(expenses) () (3,282) (4,111) (4,737) (7,924) 6,788
Profit/(loss) for the year ##EKEER 2
from continuing FEREF,
operations (E18) 9,706 (38,047) (115,279) 51,054 45224
Profit/(loss) for the year #R PSR
from/gain on disposal  F R H
of a discontinued (B8, HE®rLE
operations MEER 7 W 37,444 4,556 (125,782) (29,162) (28,513)
Profit/(loss) attributable 72 &) ISR fE(L
to the shareholders of & #, /(&)
the Company 47,150 (33,491) (241,061) 21,892 16,711

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE - AEKER

2013

As at 31st March

2011

2010

LA T —F 2 —F—— —E——F —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FHET FEIT

Total assets BEBETE 1,115,285 1,170,005 1,611,591 1,769,813 2,321,669

Total liabilities B (122,753) | (196,358)  (336,280)  (255,170) (314,734)
Equity attributable to PN R

shareholders of the s
Company 992,532 973,647 1,275,311 1,514,643 2,006,935

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REIZRERAF



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHREE

GENERAL OVERVIEW

During the fiscal year ended 31st March 2014 (the “year”), the
Group had successfully disposed of its fishmeal and branded
food business, which did not perform satisfactorily during the past
several years. This enables the Group to streamline the business
and focus on surface mount technology (“SMT”) machinery
distribution business. The Group had recognized a gain of
approximately HK$23,835,000 on disposal of the fishmeal business
and a gain of approximately HK$37,334,000 on disposal of the
branded food business. During the year, the Group managed
to record a consolidated profit of approximately HK$47,150,000
compared with last year's consolidated loss of approximately
HK$33,491,000.

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS

Anticipating another wave of thriving on smartphones, tablets and
mobile devices worldwide driven by the launch of 4G-LTE network
in China, it evolves an enormous demand for China manufacturers
to upgrade their existing equipment with more advanced
manufacturing facilities to cope with the new products. During the
year, American Tec Company Limited (“American Tec”) won new
projects and expanded its customer base with Fuji machines and
peripheral equipment. To capitalize the growth of the mobile device
market, our management team continues to build and maintain
a high level of collaboration with our major business partner Fuiji
Machine Mfg. Co., Ltd., a supplier of state-of-the-art SMT machines

as well as other leading machinery business partners.

While the planned acquisition of DEK by a major competitor and our
termination of some other non-performing distributorships would not
have a short-term impact on sales, American Tec was successful
in signing up new distributorships with Mirtec, AF Technology and
Nordson Dage, etc. Strategically, we established a software team
to launch our digital manufacturing system (DMS) and signed
new exclusive distribution agreements with a number of world-
class solution suppliers, this will allow us to deliver our value-
added software solution to meet our customers’ manufacturing
and enterprise system needs to achieve enhancement on their
productivity and products’ quality. During the year, the division
achieved a net profit of approximately HK$17 million on revenue of
approximately HK$908 million for the year, compared with the net
profit of approximately HK$21 million on revenue of approximately
HK$734 million last year.

BmE
RBE-T-—NE=A=+—HILMBRFE( R
FEDA > AEERDHEEAR B RmE

% REEBRBAETFENRBEANES
LR EBAREERBMER - 2INKREEERN
(I[SMTD#EHEEE - AEBECHEALER
MEBHIN=L 2,383 5B TR ELERER®
EBHWKEL3,7334BBTL - RAFER - K
SEMESBRRE N4 7T158ET » MAF
A A4S E1843,349.1 88T -

TEHEE

TEHh B L AG-LTERB S I B 2 IRB LT
- FREMEBBHEEIENS R I
EMESTERERFABERERBEHAREE
FERERBORAFT R - U MERDE
HeRAFEER XREFREBERAA(E
TRRDREEZEMCEIER  MERELH
WEEEREBHEFER - RERBBERETS
MIERED  EREREERT 2EBRHTE
SMTH R EEE T HMEERA S IARE
BRI B EBRH BRI MBS ESERE -

FEBFHFHIWEDEK REMEILET
HMRBRMBEHSHEEL  HHEEEY
mEATE  EDRFREKIDEMiItec - AF
Technology & Nordson Dage &1 Z 1D # 5
HE A o FERIEFE - AP T E014 7 3 = B
LA 2 B L RGE R4 (TDMS]) » JREd it RIE
LHBRATRBEEEEBEIT T2 NHBERD HH
o LA E RIS E AR TR - B
MERPEHERGERSRTENTE - AR
AEFPWEENREDESE - RAFERN - %D
HEARFFERAL BB LIRS a I FEL
1,700 8 87T - M EFERIB WAL 7.34{8E T
RIS HEFIA9 2,100 BB T °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EITREHREE

DIVISION HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

We had also commenced to enhance the existing ERP system
aiming at improving cost efficiency of American Tec and
establishing a platform to elevate its valued-added services to
improve customer loyalty and distinguish itself from its competitors.

OUTLOOK

In the year, the Group had successfully divested the branded food
business and joint venture in fishmeal business. This enabled us to
streamline the business and rethink the future plan of the Group.
The Group has been seeking potential investment opportunities
in various industries that can improve shareholders’ value and
effectively manage, deploy and apply available cash resources to
meet operational and investment needs and for the benefit of our
shareholders as a whole.

Going forward, the Group will continue to focus on companies
and industries possessing ample growth potential. Presently, we
are considering various investment opportunities that can add
diversifications to our current portfolio of investments. Furthermore,
we will also develop new services and software business in our hi-
tech distribution division in order to better leverage our existing
sales network.

APPRECIATION

We believe our long-term investment strategy, setting operating
goals, motivating our staff and sharing success with business
partners will be essential elements for the Group’s success. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
business partners, our customers, the Board and our employees for
their trust and support in the year. On behalf of the Board, | would
also like to offer our utmost appreciation to our shareholders for
their confidence in our Company.

Ding Yi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 11th June 2014

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REIZRERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the fiscal year ended 31st March 2014 (the “year”), the
Group completed the disposals of the fishmeal and branded food
business respectively. After the disposals, the Group has only the
service of surface mount technology (“SMT”) machinery distribution

business.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$907,690,000,
representing a 23.7% growth compared with approximately
HK$733,955,000 (restated)
2013 (“last year”).

experienced an abrupt downturn in sales of SMT equipment in the

in the fiscal year ended 31st March
Despite an increase in revenue, the Group
second half of the year compared with the first half of the year. This
decline of revenue was also in line with the slowdown of smartphone
shipment in China in the fourth quarter ended 31st December
2013, representing a reduction of 6.9% from third quarter of 2013,
which was the first decline in two years since 2011 as reported by
a research firm International Data Corporation (IDC). Furthermore,
according to Gartner’s analysis, there was a contraction of 1.2% on
spending on devices including PCs, ultra-books, mobile phones and
tablets in the year 2013 but expecting a growth of 4.3% in 2014. We
believe that the slowdown of smartphone shipment and reduction
of spending on devices in 2013 is temporary and their effects
on devices manufacturers in considering their expansion plan or

replacement cycle of equipment in the year are also short-term.

The Group recorded a consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$47,150,000 for the year, compared to a consolidated net loss of
approximately HK$33,491,000 last year. The increase in net profit
was mainly due to disposal gains of fishmeal and branded food
business. Excluding these disposal gains, the Group’s net loss was
approximately HK$14,019,000.

Below is a summary of the financial and business highlights of
our business division. The profit/loss figures, disclosed below, do
not include any intra-group charges, as they are eliminated upon

consolidation.

MBEREBRE

RBE_Z-—NF=A=+—BLUHBRFE(X
FEDA 'ZIK%%I DRI ER AN RmER
mER - RRELEEREK  AEERKERE
BREERMT([SMT #2570 H T -

NEEE RSN A 4 907,690,0008 T © EZE—
E-ZFZA=ZF+—HITWERFE(LFEE])
#9733,955,000 8 L (KL &7 )R 23.7% - BE

WAIB I - REBRAFE T FF 2 SMTRE
HERLYFABRE - WATHITEBE—

E—=F+_A=+—HULEENUNFEATHET
REFESENERE B ER_ZT—=F%F
ZZFERE L 6.9% - fFA#E International Data

Corporation (IDC)®&ERREIIB T ——5F
E‘Eﬁlﬁiﬂqéu\ﬁ S B o LEAh ﬁE}T‘anrtner
Z 3T —FRELEK SHE

i*%&?ﬂi iﬁ:%?éuuZﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

1.2% - HEFEH =T —

BlE  RZE—=FBFHES HTERE

BFEMHEBROEBEGREE ﬂfh%réz}&&

ERERT BB EE R ERNE FERRIER
VR ETNBREENE o

PEEIE R 4.3% ° ZISEI

REEREARFRES @AM FFEEL 47,150,000
B MEFERSESEEBERFEY
33,491,000 7T « m M FREI MDD EZEHR T
EEMKRERDEB WM - TEIELSE
HEWE - ASE 2 EEFEL R 14,019,000
AT

INTAEBDH2MBEREBHE - HREER
AR BRAERGERERHEE  UTHREZ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRE DN

HI-TECH DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICES DIVISION

Our hi-tech distribution and services division conducted business
through our wholly-owned subsidiary, American Tec Company
Limited (“American Tec”). American Tec is a leader in Asia in the
business of distribution, sales and service of SMT equipment, semi-
conductor manufacturing equipment and software on manufacturing
control, with a history of more than 25 years serving its customers
in the hi-technology sector. Our team of more than 235 engineers
and customer care staff are located in more than 25 cities in China,
South-East Asia, Vietnam and India. Customers include most of
the major telecom and electronic equipment manufacturers in the
world. We are especially well positioned with the growing base of
Chinese manufacturers. Our suppliers include leading equipment
and solutions manufacturers from Asia, the United States and
Europe. With its leading market position, American Tec signed new
distribution and service agreements with leading SMT and software
suppliers during the year to complement our major partnership
with Fuji Machine Mfg. Co., Ltd. to offer a comprehensive and
competitive SMT solution.

During the year, this division recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$907,690,000, representing an increase of about 23.7% from
approximately HK$733,955,000 last year. This year on year increase
in revenue was mainly due to changes in sales mix that a significant
increase in direct machine and solution sales had compensated the
effect of reduction in commission sales. More effort has been put
to strengthen our direct machine sales and less rely on commission
sales. During the year, the division recorded approximately
HK$825,026,000 of direct machine sales, HK$4,357,000 of software
sales, HK$59,604,000 of spare parts sales and HK$18,703,000
of commission and other service income for the year, compared
with approximately HK$617,853,000 of direct machine sales,
HK$6,482,000 of software sales, HK$50,098,000 of spare parts
sales and HK$59,522,000 of commission and other service income
last year.

Although there was an abrupt downturn in demand of SMT
equipment in the second half of the year compared with the first
half of the year, the management has put more effort to increase
direct machine sales and simultaneously implemented a number
of cost control programs, improved service income and secured
higher margin contributions from sales of peripheral equipment from
new signed suppliers in the year to offset the decline in customer
demand. Hence, American Tec managed to achieve a net profit of
approximately HK$17,282,000 in the year, representing a 21.2%
decrease compared to a net profit of approximately HK$21,942,000

last year.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REIZRERAF
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HEZESMT Rz BEHRERETTHH HEK
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RAFERN - 5 845 W A 907,690,000
7 70 0 8% b F JE #9733,955,0007% T # 049
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B OMERBAFREZEEEEEN  WET
FEEERDITE - HPIBRRE S ERINEE
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825,026,000 JT * Bl 14 §5 & F8 4) 4,357,000 7
JC ~ ZEBF S & 58 4959,604,00078 7T WA &
& K E b RS U A 49 18,703,000 7T 1 L F
FERIAKREEIEETEAL617,853,0008 T
B EHE #476,482,0008 7T~ EEHIEEEY
50,098,000 7T + A R A& K& E A0 AR UL AL
59,522,000 7T °

BENEFEE T L EHSMTRE 2B KK L¥F
AIETHR  EEECRRELSEREINEEERE
ZIHE - RNERSENAEHIEE - SRS
WA - WEHFEHERZASRBHEENRES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 19th September 2013, the Group completed the disposal
of its entire interest in 40% joint venture, Coland Group Limited
(“Coland”), which operates fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products
business and recognized a disposal gain of approximately
HK$23,835,000. The Group had shared 40% Coland’s net loss of
approximately HK$3,472,000 during the year.

The Group also completed the disposal of Burger King, the Group’s
branded food business on 31st October 2013 and recognized a
disposal gain of approximately HK$37,334,000 and the branded
food business was deconsolidated thereafter. Apart from the gain
on disposal, the Group had recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$110,000 from branded food business during the year.

OUTLOOK
Overall Summary

We expect the global economy will be recovering in 2014. This
will continue to offer various challenges to our existing businesses
in the coming year, ranging from cautious customer demand to
pressure on margins. Our focus will be to manage cash, costs and
risks and, to build our strength during these times by working with

our management teams to improve capability and efficiency.
Hi-tech Distribution and Services Division

Following the introduction of 4G-LTE network in China in December
2013, we expect to see a surge in demand for 4G mobile devices.
We expect that our customers in China will need to upgrade their
production lines with more advanced equipment in order to meet
the manufacturing needs of next generation mobile devices and
tablets. Last year, Fuji introduced the new generation NXTIII pick
& place machine, which runs at higher efficiency, higher accuracy
and lower cost of ownership. We believe this will stimulate our
customers’ demand for upgrading their equipment to achieve
higher productivity and cost efficiency under current demanding
manufacturing environment. With this outlook, we will continue
to expand our product offering and service coverage, improve
customer satisfaction through enhancement of American Tec’'s CRM
system and aim at seizing larger market share. At the same time,
we will also closely monitor our working capital, gross profit margin,
operating costs and foreign exchange risk with a view to protect our

cash flow and profitability.

RZZE—=FNA+NAB  REETKLEELE
Fa0%zeEtEaEEBBRAR(EED
(Hgamam  BhRKEERER) 22 E
o W HERR & U % 4923,835,0008 7L © A
SERAFERESRIONZBERIFENA
3,472,000/ 7T °
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110,00078 7T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRE DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group generally finance its operation with
internally generated resources and banking facilities provided by its
principal bankers in Hong Kong. As at 31st March 2014, the Group
had floating-interest bank borrowing of approximately HK$2,600,000
(2013: approximately HK$16,504,000), which was denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had banking facilities
of approximately HK$283,516,000 (2013: approximately
HK$501,839,000) from several banks for loans and trade financing.
As at 31st March 2014, banking facilities of approximately
HK$50,217,000 were utilised by the Group (2013: approximately
HK$78,654,000). These facilities were secured by corporate
guarantees of approximately HK$318,425,000 (2013: approximately
HK$508,826,000) provided by the Company and a government
guarantee of approximately HK$2,600,000 (2013: approximately
HK$19,200,000) provided by the Government of the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region.

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,115,285,000 (2013: approximately HK$1,170,005,000)
and total liabilities of approximately HK$122,753,000 (2013:
approximately HK$196,358,000), The gearing ratio of the Group,
which was calculated as total liabilities over total assets was 11.0%
(2013: 16.8%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8th July 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 40% joint venture, Coland. Coland
engages in refining and sale of fish oil, processing and sale
of fishmeal, manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed products,

aquaculture and processing and sale of aquatic products.

On 29th August 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire interests in Smart Tactic Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Smart Tactic Group”). Smart Tactic Group
engages in developing and operating Burger King restaurants in

Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWR D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had no significant investments.
Except for the aforesaid transactions, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of investments and subsidiaries during the

year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business of the Group was primarily transacted in HK$, US$,
Yen and Renminbi. The Group’s cash and bank deposits were
mainly denominated in HK$. The foreign currency exposure of the
Group is mainly driven by its business division. The Group attempts
to minimise its foreign currency exposure through (i) matching its
payables for purchases against its receivables on sales and (ii)
maintain sufficient foreign currency cash balances to settle the
foreign currency payables. We will continue to monitor closely the
exchange rate between US$ and Yen and will make necessary
hedging arrangements to minimise its foreign currency exposure

arising from foreign currency fluctuation in the future.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

NET ASSET VALUE

Consolidated net asset value attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company per ordinary share was approximately HK$0.737 as
at 31st March 2014 which reflected an increase of HK$0.014 from
the corresponding figure as at 31st March 2013 of approximately
HK$0.723.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRE DN

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31st March 2014, the Group employed 252 (2013: 683)
staff. Salaries and annual bonuses are determined according to
positions and performance of the employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed annually by the management and remuneration
packages are structured to take into account the comparable level
of the market. The Group provides on-the-job training and training
subsidies to its employees in addition to pension schemes and
medical insurance. Total staff costs from continuing operations
including contribution to retirement benefit schemes incurred
during the year amounted to approximately HK$72,455,000 (2013:
HK$72,674,000 (restated)).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There was no material capital commitments as at 31st March 2014.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ding Yi, Chairman

Mr. Ding Yi, aged 42, joined the Company in February 2013. Mr.
Ding has over 20 years of experience in the financial services
industry, including over 8 years of experience in asset management.
Mr. Ding is a responsible officer of Head & Shoulders Asset
Management Limited (“H&S”) licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to carry out Type 9
(asset management) regulated activity since May 2012. He was a
responsible officer of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited, which
wholly-owns H&S, for the same regulated activity from November
2010 to May 2012. Mr. Ding was the responsible officer of Taishan
Capital Limited (April 2008 to October 2010) and Ginger Capital
Management Limited (November 2004 to March 2006), both
privately-held asset management companies, for various regulated
activities. Prior to that, he worked for various financial institutions,
as well as in an international accounting firm. Mr. Ding received
a Bachelor of Mathematical Sciences degree from the University
of Adelaide and a Master of Business Administration degree from
Australian Graduate School of Management, University of New South
Wales. Mr. Ding is the Chairman of the nomination committee and a

member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEESN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
James Tsiolis, Deputy Chairman

Mr. James Tsiolis, aged 46, joined the Company in December 2010
and was appointed Deputy Chairman of the Company in April 2012.
Mr. Tsiolis has 20 years of experience in equity funds and capital
markets. He is the chief executive officer and a founder of Strategic
Capital Management Ltd (“SCM”) since 2000. Prior to SCM, Mr.
Tsiolis served as head of research, ipac Securities since 1997. He
also worked as a senior investment analyst of ASSIRT Investment
& Technology and a quantitative analyst of James Capel Australia
Ltd. Mr. Tsiolis serves as a chairman of Optimal Choice Pty Ltd
(trading as Investment Products). He is also a governor of Australian
Archaeological Institute at Athens and a member of Australian
Institute of Management, The Association of Superannuation Funds
of Australia Limited and Financial Planning Association of Australia
Limited. Mr. Tsiolis is the chairman of SCM Equities Pty Limited. He
is also a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University, Sydney and a Graduate Certificate Quantitative Finance

from University of Technology, Sydney.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee, aged 53, joined the Company in
February 2013. He is the chairman and acting chief executive
officer of Kaisun Energy Group Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange with a stock code 8203. He was appointed
as an executive director of Kaisun Energy Group Limited with effect
from 19th September 2008. Mr. Chan has approximately 28 years
of experience in commercial and investment banking, and asset
management. Since 1994, Mr. Chan has been a founding partner
of Oriental Patron Financial Group where he is also an executive
director of Oriental Patron Asia Limited and Oriental Patron
Securities Limited. Oriental Patron Asia Limited is the investment
manager of OP Financial Investments Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of
1140. Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Hainan Meilan
International Airport Company Limited with effect from 15th October
2007, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with a stock code of 357. From 1992 to 1994, he was also the co-
head of Credit Agricole Asset Management South Asia Limited. From
1986 to 1994, Mr. Chan was the deputy manager of Credit Agricole
and he was in charge of the China business. Mr. Chan completed
a diploma in China Investment and Trade from Peking University in
1989. He also obtained a Master’s degree in International Marketing
from the University of Strathclyde in 1995. Mr. Chan holds licenses
respectively of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 6 (advising on

corporate finance), and Type 9 (asset management) under the SFO.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse

Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, aged 59, joined the Company in
February 2013. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of LifeTech Science Corporation, a company previously
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 8122
and thereafter transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with a stock code of 1302, with effect from 22nd October 2011.
Mr. Liang served as special consultant on campus development
at United International College (“UIC”) in Zhuhai, the PRC since
October 2011. He was the executive vice president — Finance of
TWS Industrial (Holdings) Ltd since 6th October 2011, a private
company engaged in battery production. He later acted as
consultant from August 2013 to December 2013. He returned to full
time teaching as associate professor at UIC on September 2013.
Mr. Liang has extensive experience in finance and accounting. From
October 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Liang was the managing
director of the financial planning and development department
at UIC and was responsible for serving financial advisory and
human resources management functions. During October 2005 to
December 2008, he was a director at Shenzhen Alclear Consulting
Limited, a company engaging in financial, corporate management
and investment consultancy services, and was responsible for
developing accounting training in the PRC. Between August 2001
and October 2005, Mr. Liang served various roles at Skyworth
Digital Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with a stock code of 751, including as the group’s
financial controller and company secretary in charge of finance
and management information system functions. From November
1993 to August 2001, he was the finance manager at Hongkong
International Terminals Limited for Yantian International Container
Terminals, both companies being container terminal companies
managed by the Hutchison Port Holdings Trust. Mr. Liang completed
a diploma in business management from Hong Kong Baptist
College in December 1977. He also obtained a Master's degree
in Professional Accounting from University of Texas, Austin in May
1981. Mr. Liang later obtained a Bachelor's degree in Language
and Translation from Hong Kong Open University in December
2007. Mr. Liang is a member of the Texas Society of Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since June
1982 and Association of Certified Chartered Accountants (ACCA)
since May 1982. Mr. Liang is the Chairman of the audit committee
and remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Stephen Luk Kai Ming

Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming, aged 46, joined the Company in February
2013. He is the director of Montres Journe (Hong Kong) Limited and
Montres Journe (Bejing) Limited since 2006 and 2009 respectively,
both the exclusive authorized retailers in the PRC of F.P. Journe,
a high-end watch manufacturer of Switzerland. Between 2010
and 2012, Mr. Luk was also the director of Independence (Hong
Kong) Limited, the authorized retailer of a number of independent
watchmakers, tailors, and shoemakers. Mr. Luk has been the
adjunct associate professor of the School of Business at Hong Kong
Baptist University since 2014. He has been the adjunct assistant
professor of the School of Accounting and Finance at Hong Kong
Polytechnic University since 2006, and was assistant professor from
2001 to 2005. Mr. Luk has been a treasurer of Asian Competition
Forum at Hong Kong Polytechnic University since 2005. He was also
the visiting lecturer of Microeconomics and Macroeconomics for
MBA at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (International College
the PRC) in August 2002. Mr.
Luk took positions as tutor and teaching assistant at University of
California Berkeley (“UC Berkeley”) between 1995 and 1998. Before
that, he was a tutor at University of Southern California (“USC”) from
1990 to 1991.

Association for Energy Economics (Hong Kong Affiliate) during

for Innovative Training at Zhuhai,

Mr. Luk was the committee member of International

2005 and 2008. Mr. Luk was also a jury member of the Geneva
Watchmaking Grand Prix, being the first and only Chinese, from
2004 to 2007. Mr.

relation to economics, mathematics and the electricity market. In

Luk published various academic journals in

addition, he has participated in various consultation projects in
relation to economics and the electricity market. Mr. Luk graduated
from USC with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics in May 1991.
He also completed a Ph.D.
2001.

numerous honors and awards including the title of Phi Beta Kappa,

in Economics at UC Berkeley in May

During his study in USC and UC Berkeley, He has received

the highest honor of outstanding student in the United States of
America. Mr. Luk is a member of the audit committee, remuneration

committee and nomination committee of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEESN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, aged 52, joined the Company in
February 2013. He was appointed as a director and deputy chief
executive of Dan Form Holdings Company Limited (“Dan Form”) in
October 1994, and re-designated as its non-executive director in
October 2012. Dan Form is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with a stock code of 271 and owns significant property
interests in Hong Kong. Between 1999 and 2007, Mr. Kon was
also an independent non-executive director of Jingwei Textile
Machinery Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange with a stock code of 350. Mr. Kon has been
involved in the planning of many large-scale investments and
development projects in the PRC and Hong Kong and has over 26
years’ experience in investment and management in manufacturing
industries and property development. He also has extensive
experience in securities trading, corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions and corporate restructuring. Mr. Kon graduated from
Middlesex University in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies in 1987. Mr. Kon is a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee

of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Henry Law Wai Fai, Chief Financial Officer and Company

Secretary

Mr. Henry Law Wai Fai, aged 46, joined the Company in June
2013. Mr. Law has extensive professional experience in financial
management, investor relations, company secretarial and corporate
governance, in particular over 13 years of accounting and company
secretarial experience at listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds
a master’'s degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEREEAEESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ong Kay Huat, Chief Executive Officer of American Tec

Company Limited

Mr. Ong Kay Huat, aged 47, joined American Tec Company Limited
(“American Tec”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
August 2010. Mr. Ong has over 25 years’ working experience in the
electronic industry. He has worked for electronic EMS company,
SMT and semiconductor equipment supplier and distributors,
software and service/solution providers. Prior to joining American
Tec, he was the President of Far East for Valor Computerized
System Far East Limited (“Valor”). Prior to joining Valor, he had held
various senior management positions with increasing responsibility
in Panasonic, Universal Instruments and Siemens. Mr. Ong holds
two master degrees in Business Administration and International

Marketing Management with Macquarie University of Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXER®|E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavours to maintain high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders, and follows the
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The Board will continue reviewing and updating its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure compliance with
applicable codes and standards.

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2014 (the “year”),
the Company complied with all the Code provisions with the
exceptions addressed below and, where appropriate, adopted the
recommended best practices set out in the Code.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Board’s decisions are implemented
under the leadership of the Chairman with the involvement and
support of the chief executive officer(s) and general manager(s) of
the Company’s operating companies. The Board believes that the
balance of authority and division of responsibility are adequately
ensured by the operations of the Board and management which
comprise experienced and high calibre individuals.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. However, Mr. James Tsiolis, Non-
executive Director elected by the shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company was not appointed for a specific term but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Due to other important engagement at the relevant time, an
independent non-executive director was unable to attend the
general meetings of the Company held in September 2013.
However, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of the Board
committees attended the annual general meeting and special
general meeting of the Company held in September 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXER®/E

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required

Standard during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 31st March 2014, the Board comprised of six directors, with
one Executive Director, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, more than one-third of the
Board. The composition of the Board during the year is set out as

follows:

Executive Director

Ding Yi (Chairman)
Non-Executive Directors

James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman)
Joseph Chan Nap Kee

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Joseph Liang Hsien Tse
Stephen Luk Kai Ming
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section of “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
13 to 19.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to determine
overall strategic direction and objectives and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results, budgets and other significant matters.
At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings are given to all
Directors, who are all given an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for discussion. Apart from formal meetings,
matters requiring Board approval are arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions. Senior management from time
to time provides to the Directors information on activities and
development of the business of the Group. The company secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of

matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or Director arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director
has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his interest and

abstains from voting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

Eight Board meetings and two general meetings were held
during the year with an average attendance rate of 94% and 83%
respectively. The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the
Board and each of the committees and general meetings is set out

below:

EEae4)
ERRBREERER

RAFER - £RTN\AESSSERMAMRKE
RE FHEEED R A% K83% - FEF
EEEEEREEEEEEURBRREAGZIER
HHT

Number of Meetings attended/held

b/ BreERY
Annual Special
Audit  Remuneration  Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Ezg EHZEEE HHzEg REZEE  RREERE  RERAAE
Executive Director #1782
Ding i (Chairman) Ti(2E) 88 - i i 1 1
Non-Executive Directors ez
James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman) James Tsiolis (52 /%) 88 - — — i N
Joseph Chan Nap Kee Rig 78 - — - i 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse 285 88 55 11 11 11 1
Stephen Luk Kai Ming 352 718 5/5 N i 1M 1n
Kenneth Kon Hiu King TED 58 55 i i 0/t 01
Roles and responsibilities ABEEM

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic
development of the Group with the goal of maximising long-term
shareholders’ value, while balancing broader stakeholder interests.
Given the diversity and volume of the Company’s business,
responsibility for execution and daily operations is delegated to

management.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size and composition
to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole. All the Directors have

given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities (continued)

During the year, the Executive Director was responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s operations. This Director
conducted regular meetings with the senior management of
the Company and its subsidiaries, at which operational issue
and financial performance were evaluated. The Non-executive
Directors provided the Company with a wide range of expertise and
experience. They brought advice and judgment on issues relating to
the Group’s strategy, performance, risk and management process,
and corporate governance through their contribution at Board and

committee meetings.

According to the bye-laws of the Company, newly appointed
directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Independence

During the year, the Company had three Independent Non-
executive Directors, at least one of whom had appropriate financial
management expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
Each Independent Non-executive Director had given the Company
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules, and the Company considers these Directors
to be independent under the guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules. Up to the date of this report, the Board has not been aware
of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe
that their independence has been impaired. As at the date of this
report, the Board has not been aware of any relationship between

the Board members of the Company.
Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their

knowledge and skills.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuing Professional Development (continued)

The Directors are from time to time provided materials on
amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company has been encouraging the
Directors and officers to participate in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the GEM Listing
Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies and/or
independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge

and skills.

Up to the date of this report, all Directors participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by attending
seminar relating to corporate governance and regulations or by
reading materials relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The

participation by individual director during the year is set out below:

BExg#)
FREXBRR(E)

EETHEREMEREE - RAIRMROLZERT K
RHRAZER  NERESHEHESSFY
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BEARSAY 2REFCEBLFERHLE

ERRBRAZAN EXMERAEBREREELZ

ﬁﬂ 2HEEERESEEREY - RAFE
CEREEZ2BBERHEIIMNT

Read regulatory Attend conference/

updates/materials ~ seminars/workshop

MEEE LEEs/

BFAEER WaE/ TS
Executive Director HTES
Ding Yi (Chairman) Tz (+5) v
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
James Tsiolis (Deputy Chairman) James Tsiolis (8/# /&) v v/
Joseph Chan Nap Kee TR & v /
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse RER
Stephen Luk Kai Ming FERAER v
Kenneth Kon Hiu King FED v v/

Insurance

The Company arranges, and will review annually, appropriate

insurance cover in respect of legal against its directors and officers.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As at the date of this report, the Company had Mr. Ding Yi to
assume the role as the Chairman of the Board and the Executive
Director of the Company, with no chief executive officer. The
Board’s decisions are implemented under the leadership of the
Chairman with the involvement and support of the chief executive
officer(s) and general manager(s) of the Company’s operating
companies. The Board believes that the balance of authority and
division of responsibility are adequately ensured by the operations
of the Board and management which comprise experienced and

high calibre individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the existing Non-executive Directors
is for a period of three years unless terminated by either party with
one month’s written notice, except for Mr. James Tsiolis who was
not appointed for a specific term but elected by the shareholders at
the general meeting. All the Non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings

in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely
nomination committee, remuneration committee and audit
committee. All of these committees have their respective terms
of reference which accord with the principles set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises four members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King and is chaired by Mr. Ding Yi, Chairman and

Executive Director of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of directors, evaluation of board size, structure and composition,
management of board succession with reference to the board
diversity policy and certain guidelines including appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics,
integrity and personal skills, and time commitments of member. The
Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
nomination committee which are aligned with the provisions set out
in the Code. The terms of reference of the committee setting out
its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

websites of the Company and the GEM.

During the year, the committee reviewed the board composition,
board diversity policy and retirement of Directors by rotation and
made recommendations to the Board. One meeting was held during
the year with an attendance rate of 100%. The attendance of each
Director at the meetings of the committee is set out in the section

headed “Frequency of Meetings and Attendance” of this report.
Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee currently comprises four members,
namely Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse (committee chairman), Mr.
Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King, all being
Independent Non-executive Directors, and Mr. Ding Yi, Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company. The Board has adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the remuneration
committee which are aligned with the provisions set out in the
Code. The committee has adopted the model where it has
delegated responsibility to determine the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference of the committee setting
out its authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

websites of the Company and the GEM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy and
overseeing the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management. It takes into consideration of factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions of directors and senior

management.

In addition to the committee meeting, the remuneration committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation. During the year, the
committee reviewed and determined the remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management of the Company. One meeting
was held during the year with an attendance rate of 100%. The
attendance of each director at the meetings of the committee is set
out in the section headed “Frequency of Meetings and Attendance”

of this report.

For the year ended 31st March 2014, total directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$6,001,000 (2013: HK$6,962,000).
Remuneration of the executive directors is prudently designed to
attract, motivate and retain them to formulate strategies and to
oversee operational matters of the Group and to reward them for
enhancing value to the shareholders. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors for the year are set out in note 8 to the accompanying

financial statements.
Audit Committee

The audit committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse, Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming and Mr.
Kenneth Kon Hiu King, all being Independent Non-executive
Directors. The committee is chaired by Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in

financial matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board has adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the audit committee to align with the provisions set out in the Code.
The committee’s principal duties are to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of the accounting and financial controls of the Group,
oversee the performance of internal control systems and financial
reporting process, monitor the integrity of the financial statements
and compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to

oversee independence and qualifications of the external auditors.

The audit committee meets at least four times a year to discuss
any area of concern during the audits or reviews and at least
twice of the meetings shall be with the external auditors. The audit
committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. Senior representatives of the external
auditors, executive directors and senior management are invited to

attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the audit committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was content
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group are in
accordance with the current best practices in Hong Kong. Five
meetings were held during the year with an average attendance rate
of 100%. The attendance of each Director at the meetings of the
committee is set out in the section headed “Frequency of Meetings

and Attendance” of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including: (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. During the year, the Board reviewed

the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditors on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditors for the audit of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$1,350,000 (2013: HK$2,302,000)
and fee for non-audit related activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$570,000 (20183:
HK$959,000).

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interest. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems. The
system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system aims to support

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The internal control system comprises a well-defined organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority
to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Board conducts regularly reviews of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
reviews performed by audit committee, executive management,

internal audit department and external auditors.

During the year, the internal audit department conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
of the Company and its operating subsidiaries covering all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance
and risk management, and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, their training programs and budget. The
audit committee was well informed of the audit findings, emerging

trends and successful practices in internal auditing.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system through the following processes and

subsequently reported the review results to the Board:

. discussions with the executive management on areas of risk
identified

o review of risks reported by the internal audit department

. review of the external audit plans

o review of issues reported by external auditors

. review of the reports from the internal audit department, the

executive management to ensure appropriate controls are in

place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

Based on the result of the review for the year ended 31st March
2014, the Board considered that the internal control system and
procedures of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programs and budget, are
adequate and effective and have complied with the provisions of

the Code during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and
Board committees by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary reports to the Board and assists the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently. He also advises the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of directors. All directors of the Company may call
upon the company secretary for advice and assistance at any time
in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board

and the Board committees.

Mr. Law Wai Fai is the chief financial officer and company secretary
of the Company. He is a full time employee of the Company and had
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Law undertook
not less than 20 hours of relevant professional training during the

year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) in
September 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity

on the Board in order to enhance the quality of its performance.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a

diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and independence. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of the Policy and review the Policy annually to
ensure the effectiveness of the Policy. The nomination committee of
the Company will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and

approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to the bye-Laws of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The requisition must be

lodged with the Company’s registered office.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director of the Company are set out in the Company’s bye-laws
and also available at the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business of Hong Kong at Suite 1318, 13th Floor,

Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board adopted a shareholders’ communication policy which
aims at providing the shareholders and potential investors
with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. The Company has established a
number of channels for maintaining an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders as follows: (a) corporate communications such as
announcements, annual reports, quarterly reports and circulars are
published and available on the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
and the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com; (b) corporate
information is made available on the Company’s website; (c) general
meetings provide a forum for the shareholders to make comments
and exchange views with the Directors and senior management,
and the poll results of the general meetings are published on the
websites of the Company and the GEM; and (d) the Company’s
share registrars serve the shareholders in respect of share
registration, dividend payment, change of shareholders’ particulars

and related matters.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

During the year, the Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the
Board committees and external auditors attended the annual general
meeting and general meeting of the Company held in September
2013 to answer questions from shareholders, an independent non-
executive director was unable to be present at the general meetings

due to other important engagement at the relevant time.

The Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws is
available on both the Company’s website at www.nasholdings.com
and the GEM website at www.hkgem.com. The Board is not aware of
any significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are ultimately responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which gives a true
and fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standards are selected and applied

consistently.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the independent auditors’ report on pages 43 and 44 of this report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerate effort to
strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate governance

of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHRES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have the
pleasure of presenting their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st March 2014 (the “year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. Most of the Group’s business
remains unchanged except the branded food business has been
discontinued and the fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products

business has been disposed of.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment results by
operating segment for the year is set out in note 5 to the

accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in note 24 to the accompanying financial

statements.

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 45 and 46, respectively, of this

annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the accompanying financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2014, the reserves available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$930,325,000 (2013: HK$946,021,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this

annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 17 to the accompanying financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the accompanying financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st March 2014 are set out in

note 26 to the accompanying financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year.
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DONATION

During the year, the Group made donations of approximately
HK$20,000 (2013: NIL).

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year are:

Ding Yi

James Tsiolis

Joseph Chan Nap Kee
Joseph Liang Hsien Tse
Stephen Luk Kai Ming
Kenneth Kon Hiu King

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Messrs.
Joseph Chan Nap Kee and Joseph Liang Hsien Tse shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and be

eligible for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 13 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

accompanying financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION SREEAEME

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior RAFE BN FALESREEENKE (T
management of the Group other than the Executive Directors for the BEERIN BT
year is as follows:

For the year ended 31st March
BE=ZA=+t—HLFE

2014
—E-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances AR & KR 2,940 3,342
Bonus TE4T 907 1,229
Employer’s contribution to retirement 1B 2 RREHEIHR
scheme 12 16
Payment in lieu and severance payment RiBANE REHRE — 345
3,859 4,932
For the year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLEFE
2014
—E-mE
Remuneration by band TSR
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 077t — 1,000,000 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 — 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T — 3,000,000 T 1 2
2 3
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st March 2014, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had the following interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules

relating to the securities transactions by Directors:

EERRETHRAERRO K EERA
ZERRKRE

RZE—WF=A=+—0 EFKEARAES
THRABURBEESBZHBBEALTHRARRSNE
HEEZE(TERBFRAERN((EHREE
Bl 1) EEXVER) 2 R AR+ #E T 5
BHAREBEFELFRAEEOEISETUAFEZ
Fa A REBAIZER ETRAIES54614ESE
567 (EMERETESRHIZRTANG AN
NRIRI R T2 AR

Long positions in the shares of the Company REARARBZEHE

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholdings
EEnE 14 FREEBEREE FRZEBABEIL
Ding Yi Beneficial owner 402,445,296 29.90%
Tz EREEA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2014, none of the BREXHBEEEN RZE—HF=A=+—

Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the securities of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by

Directors.

Save for the above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age
had any interests in, or had been granted or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for any securities of the Company or any of its associated

corporations during the year.
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INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
PERSONS

As at 31st March 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and

Ht AL 2 EHEHAR

RIZ-—ME=ZA=1t—H REERARF&

chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than ,%ﬂftk}\/ﬁ\ﬁﬁ%ﬂ P TNAIIAT(BER EXHERERS
the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests ZEERANTESITHABRIN RARRQ T/
were disclosed above) had interests or short positions in the shares BRI - HEEIARERES RAEG
or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the BIZE 336 IETUATFEZELMARZERIAE
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions in the shares of the Company REQATRBZER
Other shareholders of the Company BMALGRE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholdings
£ 514 FIsERREE BFR2BIEIH
C.L Davids Fond og Samling Beneficial owner 106,178,010 7.89%
BEx#EAA
United Overseas Bank Limited Beneficial owner 69,457,701 5.16%
RERITERRAA EmlEAA

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company the interests of which
were disclosed above) who has an interest or short position in the
securities of the Company that were required to be entered in the
register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at
31st March 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 31st October 2006, the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “Best Creation Scheme”) adopted by Best Creation
Investments Limited (“Best Creation”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, allowing its board of directors to grant options to
subscribe for shares in Best Creation to the selected participants
under such scheme as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Best Creation group. The Best Creation Scheme has a life of ten
years commencing on the adoption date of 31st October 2006. As
at 31st March 2014, no share options have been granted pursuant

to the Best Creation Scheme.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1tZ2 REIZRERAF

BREXHEEEN RIB—NF=A=+—
B AEERARRZSITHRAEMM  BEE
TEJ/\:t(E%tiﬁ?ﬁZﬁ%iﬁ$"ﬂ?%’fiE&
ABBRINRARRBHZPRE AN AREE
NEIEGDIZE 336 1R T AIFE Z B MR 2w
B/ =g

i

iR
RZBEXRFTA=+—B ARF#HEES

&8 2 &) Best Creation Investments Limited
([Best Creation]) £ 4% 2 i A% # &t £ ([ Best
Creationzt#l]) - BAZEZ @A RIBZA ML
Pk 2825 5 0] 28 Best Creation B9 A&
f&#E - BRI E ¥ Best Creation @ ATEE B
Z S E)s 42 E - Best CreationsH 2|/ 4% 8 &
—EEXRFTAZTBEHASBTE - RZZ
—mFE=R=+—0H " HEIRIEBest Creation
IR AR E -

EI‘I:

=i
=



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgHRES

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of

the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2014, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 36.5% of the Group’s total turnover and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 18.5% of the
Group’s total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 63.1% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
58.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers noted above.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31st March 2014.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information, the Company maintains
a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued ordinary
shares as at the date of this annual report.

INFORMATION OF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Ding Yi. Mr.

is the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company. The

Ding

biographical details of Mr. Ding are set out on page 13 of this

annual report.

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Law Wai Fai. He is
also the chief financial officer of the Company. The biographical
details of Mr. Law are set out in section of “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” on page 18.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 20 to 34 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 have
been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

Ding Yi
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 11th June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B %A RS

st
EY =x

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 160, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31st March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B %A S

To the shareholders of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

11th June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GERBR

Year ended 31st March 2014 BE —ZE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET
(Restated)
(&=E751)
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue A 5 907,690 733,955
Cost of sales SHE AN (777,437) (595,375)
Gross profit E 5 130,253 138,580
Other income and gains, net EMgA R - F58 6 1,500 5,055
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEA (66,785) (73,228)
General and administrative —MRITHER
expenses (77,805) (63,232)
Impairment of investments in joint NN
ventures KERE — (45,273)
Gain on disposal of joint ventures HEAEDEY W 23,835 —
Operating profit/(loss) RRF(B18) 10,998 (38,098)
Finance income R I ON 9 5,592 3,718
Finance costs MIEER 9 (130) (1,608)
Share of profits and losses of joint JEhE EE RN R
ventures 58 (3,472) 2,052
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETIS R AT A (&) 7 12,988 (33,936)
Income tax expense sz it 10 (3,282) (4,111)
Profit/(loss) for the year from SEISEETS 2 FNmF
continuing operations (&) 9,706 (38,047)
Discontinued operation IR
Profit for the year from/gain BRI E X 2
on disposal of a discontinued FRmF SRR
operation E Al & 12 37,444 4,556
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRE AL (BE) 11 47,150 (33,491)
Profit/(loss) per share attributable RQ B E AR AR R R (Y
to ordinary shareholders of the FRwH,(EE)
Company 14
Basic and diluted BEARREE
— For profit/(loss) for the year — FRmEH ()
(HK cents) C&Nl) 3.50 (2.49)
— For profit/(loss) for the year — RBEREELZ
from continuing operations FRNEF,(EE)
(HK cents) CENM) 0.72 (2.83)

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

FREMNREBRBREZFERMBERRMEA3

B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEZHEWER

Year ended 31st March 2014 B —ZE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHEF(BE) 47,150 (33,491)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Eh 2w W e
Other comprehensive income to be REZHEEER»BEEER 2
reclassified to profit or loss in Hith 2 HE s
subsequent periods:
Currency translation differences: ERmE A
Currency translation differences of BINETE 2 BB Z5R
foreign operations 270 SIS
Reclassification adjustment for E B RR LA AR
exchange differences included MEFAGZEBRZRZ
in the consolidated statement of profit [E N ZRBENEN
or loss upon deconsolidation of a DT
subsidiary 209 —
Reclassification adjustment for AHEAETEMS
exchange differences included ARG EEKRZ
in the consolidated statement of profit FEH ZRBIELER
or loss upon disposal of joint ventures DA (32,289) —
Share of other comprehensive income JEIh & &bz Hith 2K E
of joint ventures 3,545 768
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAEME R
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX OF NIL BRATIS R 212558 (28,265) 1,081
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZEK =T
THE YEAR 18,885 (32,410)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B BRI &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-lmE —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BE&EE 15 6,373 8,617
Intangible assets B AE 16 373,692 373,692
Investments in joint ventures REEREZRE 18 — 137,684
Notes receivable e 19 45,583 =
Other non-current assets Hi3EmeEE 20 1,710 7,276
427,358 527,269
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 2,120 2,772
Notes receivable e E % 19 46,644 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 EBGRIE X
H At fE R IE 22 66,663 83,713
Cash and cash equivalents HekRESEEER 23 572,500 556,251
687,927 642,736
Total assets EERE 1,115,285 1,170,005
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders 742 TR E/GRER
of the Company
Share capital & A 24 13,459 13,459
Reserves &t 25 979,073 960,188
Total equity R 992,532 973,647

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT F3f 47



48

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &R

31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

2013
===
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FETT FET
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings BE 26 2,600 16,504
Trade and other payables Z 5 N HRIE R
HAth R RIE 27 114,224 153,263
Income tax liabilities isfas 5,093 2,286
Provisions B 28 — 10,500
121,917 182,553
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 29 438 417
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBEE 30 398 13,388
836 13,805
Total liabilities BEAE 122,753 196,358
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 1,115,285 1,170,005
Net current assets REBEEFRH 566,010 460,183
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERABEE 993,368 987,452
Approved by the Board of Directors on 11th June 2014: RZT—MHFEAA+—BEEESHHE

Ding Yi Tl

Chairman and Executive Director

FERHUTEE

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA

Joseph Chan Nap Kee FRy &
Non-Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31st March 2014 BE —ZE—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

KA R RRESNL
Share capital Reserves Total
&S % ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T
(note 25)
(Hist25)
Balances at 1st April 2012 RZE——FWNA—HZ&EH 134,660 1,140,651 1,275,311
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Loss for the year FREE — (33,491) (33,491)
Other comprehensive income B2 E Nz
Currency translation differences BINETS 2 EMIME
of foreign operations =8 — 313 8)8
Share of other comprehensive EREECEZHMER
income of joint ventures W as — 768 768
Total other comprehensive income Efh 2 E 45 — 1,081 1,081
Total comprehensive income FREEBGAHE
for the year — (32,410) (32,410)
Share repurchase (note 25(b)) BRI (#7Z25(b)) — (54) (54)
Cancellation of shares HEERRM (A2 25(b))
repurchased (note 25(b)) (66) 54 (12)
Capital reduction (note 24(a)) BRASBUIR (a2 24(a)) (121,135) 121,135 —
Special dividend (note 13) BRIk S (H3F13) — (269,188) (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013 RZZE-—=F=A=+—H
iR 13,459 960,188 973,647
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Year ended 31st March 2014 B —ZE—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR RRRER
Share capital Reserves
(&S e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
(note 25)
(Mizt25)
Balances at 1st April 2013 RZE—=FMA—HZ&# 13,459 960,188 973,647
Comprehensive income 2 K
Profit for the year F Rz F — 47,150 47,150
Other comprehensive income B2 E Kz
Currency translation differences BINERS 2 BRI E =58
of foreign operations — 270 270
Reclassification adjustment for ENBARKILRE AR
exchange differences MEFTAGRAEBERZ
included in the consolidated EREZBELENHHA
statement of profit or loss AR
upon the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary — 209 209
Reclassification adjustment HEAEREM
for exchange differences Hit ARABERZ
included in the consolidated EREZBELENHHA
statement of profit or loss AR
upon the disposal of joint
ventures — (32,289) (32,289)
Share of other comprehensive EiheaEhEr
income of joint ventures H it 2 E e — 3,545 3,545
Total other comprehensive income  Eft 2 E Uz A% — (28,265) (28,265)
Total comprehensive income for F£RZHEKFAE
the year - 18,885 18,885
Balances at 31st March 2014 RZZBE-—ME=A=+—H
o1 13,459 979,073 992,532
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31st March 2014 HE & —

ME=A=1t—RALFE

2013
—T—=4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
A FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KETEzHERE
Net cash flows used in EEMERZ
operations Remn=eFE 31 (21,359) (13,912)
Interest paid ERFE (130) (1,988)
Mainland China corporate income BT AR B 1b ZE P AS A
tax paid (459) (197)
Net cash flows used in operating KEFFMERAZRERE
activities R (21,948) (16,097)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHZHERE
Additions of property, plant RNEME - BE RZE
and equipment (5,015) (2,727)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment FT{S I8 3,160 1,718
Proceeds from disposal of a W 4R H S TS FT 1S 3R
discontinued operation 12 10,769 —
Proceeds from disposal of HESSREMERE
joint ventures 18 38,419 —
Interest received B FH 8 3,888 3,718
Net cash flows from investing activities #&EEFMELZ RS REFHE 51,221 2,709
Cash flows from financing activities BEZFBHHERE
Share repurchase EAElh) — (54)
Special dividend paid EH%EJ%g — (269,188)
New bank loans FIRITER 67,191 170,444
Repayment of bank loans and fﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁgm&ﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
capital elements of finance leases BARE S (80,734) (215,811)
Net cash flows used in MEEBEACESREFHE
financing activities (13,543) (814,609)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BE&RBEEESEER 2~
equivalents (@ 2) 15,730 (327,997)
Cash and cash equivalents at FEYzReRBEELEHEER
beginning of year 556,251 884,053
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMNEEZSEHE FHE
changes, net 519 195
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZ2ASRESEEER
end of year 572,500 556,251
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31st March 2014 B —ZE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—g-m# —3-=%

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBASEEBBAEHRIM
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and on hand RITEFERE 23 174,031 232,486
Non-pledged time deposits with REUSHRFTEIE B &
original maturity of three months =EA AT 2
or less when acquired TE HAfF 3R 398,469 323,765
Cash and cash equivalents as stated  #RA AR KTE 2
in the consolidated statement of RekReEEER
financial position 572,500 556,251
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B %5 R &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2013
T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A NIEENGIPA: 17 622,788 652,234
622,788 652,234
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 kI KR H Ath
FEW R IE 22 132 57
Amount due from a subsidiary FEURHT B A =) FIE 36(b) 1,120 1,120
Cash and cash equivalents HekRE&EEER 23 410,071 396,631
411,323 397,808
Total assets EEAR 1,034,111 1,050,042
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders 72 5 REG#ER
of the Company
Share capital [N 24 13,459 13,459
Reserves i 25 930,325 946,021
Total equity R 943,784 959,480
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8 35 AR 0 3%

31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

2013
===
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FETT FET
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 P&~ SR E K E A FE T
SR 27 1,107 1,305
Amount due to a subsidiary FET M R R FRIE 36(b) 89,220 89,257
90,327 90,562
Total liabilities BEHAE 90,327 90,562
Total equity and liabilities EEREEARE 1,034,111 1,050,042
Net current assets REBEEFE 320,996 307,246
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAHERABEE 943,784 959,480
Approved by the Board of Directors on 11th June 2014: RZE—NFAAT—BEESSHE -
Ding Yi TlZ Joseph Chan Nap Kee BRI &
Chairman and Executive Director Non-Executive Director
TEFHTEE FEHTTESE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

GENERAL INFORMATION

North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and its joint ventures
are principally engaged in the following businesses during the

year:

o hi-tech distribution and services: trading of surface
mount technology (“SMT") assembly equipment,
machinery and spare parts and the provision of related
installation, training, repair and maintenance services

for SMT assembly equipment;

. branded food: developing and operating Burger King
restaurants in Hong Kong (discontinued on 31st October
2013);

. fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products: refining
and sale of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal,
manufacturing and sale of aquatic feed products,
aquaculture and processing and sale of aquatic
products (disposed of on 19th September 2013); and

° investment holding.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and of its principal place of
business is Suite 1318, 13th Floor, Two Pacific Place, 88

Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by

the Company’s board of directors on 11th June 2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEREHBRHE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation B ENERMERMERA 2 EESETECR

of these financial statements are set out below. These policies HNTX - RBEHEBIN BEBKREE

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, BERZEFMBEEWMER o

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 wEHEEE
These financial statements have been prepared in WEMBHRRDIBESBSTMA
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting g5 rg )BHRZ2E
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong B RS ERI([ BB MRS E
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Bl (BIEFE RV GRS %R -
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by BEESEN(EESFEN]D R
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 2E)  AaBAREHRAREER
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in AEAl 2 RBHREMBR - WER
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong BEESKAEF R -

Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 22 EBHBRREEBEZEH
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REBERAFE 2R BHREE X
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial RN T 5] R BB BB ISR
statements. HERA
HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of BERUBREED BAMBRE LS 1
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards — F1R2EF] 5B AR B E
Government Loans BBHREER —
BFE#ZERT
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: ERUBREER BEMBERSERD
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and BT ZIER] BT REHILA -
Financial Liabilities BE — 2HEER
EHEBZHHEZ
(5
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BAMBREER AqETE
£13%
HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial BEgs £l BB EERE 154
Statements — Presentation of ltems of Other FAK2ER] B#Hxz 25 —
Comprehensive Income B2 EzE H
225 Z1EFT
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits EREERE 19 ESEF
B(ZT——F)
HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets BEgs £l BT ERIE 365
— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- B30 BE]  EEME — e
Financial Assets (early adopted) BEZ A %5
HE BRI (IRE
i)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 5% (BRUB®R FXESLEERZ
Surface Mine EREBZEE) AHHFEAL
— RBE20%
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in —EZFER R-E——FBHE
2009-2011 Cycle June 2012 —F——FHE hrETERANE
ZEEN ERAZ BT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 13 and amendments to HKAS 1, and
certain amendments included in Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new and revised

HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The standard does not change
the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its
use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively
and the adoption has had no material impact
on the Group’s fair value measurements. As a
result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies
for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13
for the fair value measurements of financial
instruments are included in note 3.3 to the

financial statements.

2.

EXRSTHERBMER)

2.2

B RERRESERE ()

BREREEVBREEAFIIHRR
HEartERE 1R ZIER] - AR
FENFE T —FHHZFE
HEFRBETET 2R ENT X E
—FREIN AT REIETE
BB HREENE I EFHRERAL
BEAMBHE -

SRt S AT AT T BB B I 6
SRAZEBHEWT

(a) BAEUBHMELRFE135E
HRAREZBHEESR  AEA
REFEZE-RERER
BB ELENBEAERZ
WERTE - ZER T SHER
SEAERAABEZER M
REEEMEEWBRSE LR
EREXAFERAAAEBEZR
N T EMEI R R ERME
5l BEEMBHELRF3
SAEHER - MRAZER
HARBEZAAEFELES
AT E - HRBBU B MELE
AIE 135k 2485 - METER
REZBRCER - BEMB

HEAFIZHRRERAL D
BMTAZAREFEFELZHE
SMRBE BN T RRMEES.3 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income
(“ocCl1”).

recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time

[tems that could be reclassified (or

(for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow
hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-
sale financial assets) are presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for
example, the revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments have affected the presentation
only and have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. In addition,
the Group has chosen to use the new title
“statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2014 =

2.

—mFE=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(c) Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number
of standards. There are separate transitional

provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in changes
in accounting policies, none of these amendments
have had a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity
must include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements
when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period. The
additional comparative information does not
need to contain a complete set of financial
statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that
the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period
must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications,
and that change has a material effect on
the statement of financial position. However,
the related notes to the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and
requires entities to apply the requirements
in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising from
distributions to equity holders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 Amendments HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39'

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and ~ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities'

HKAS 19 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits —
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’

HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

HKAS 39 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge

Accounting'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
2010 — 2012 Cycle January 2014°
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
2011 — 2013 Cycle January 20142
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ st

31st March 2014 =

—mFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2014

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements for
a period beginning on or after 1st January 2016 and not
applicable to the Group

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’'s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVQO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9
the requirements related to hedge accounting and
made some related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting.
The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements
for assessing hedge effectiveness which result in
more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on
using purchased options and non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only
the improved accounting for own credit risk-related
fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as
introduced in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9
requirements at the same time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance in
HKAS 39 on impairment of financial assets continues to
apply. The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013 and
a mandatory effective date will be determined after the
entire replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However,
the standard is available for application now. The Group
will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,

when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The Group expects
that these amendments will not have any impact on the
Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon

adoption on 1st April 2014.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31st March 2014. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted

for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the statement
of profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities

of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other

vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries that are not
classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parents that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of controls of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s

investments in joint ventures.

The results of joint ventures are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivables.
The Company’s investments in joint ventures are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at

cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

When an investment in joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the

acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in the statement of profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in the statement of

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

Business combinations and goodwill

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31st March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those

units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the disposed operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & Ilﬁ at

31st March 2014 =

2.

—HFE=A=1+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2014 =

2.

—mFE=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(0

(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over, the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(0

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as an executive director who makes

strategic decisions.
2.9 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Group’s

presentation currency.
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance income
or costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the statement of profit or
loss within “other income and gains” and “general

and administrative expenses”, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ st

31st March 2014 =

—mFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as part of the fair value

gain or loss.
Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the entities
within the Group (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange difference arising

are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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31st March 2014 =

—HFE=A=1+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of a foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over joint
ventures that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company are reclassified

to the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and is
not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to the statement of profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition

of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to write off
their costs to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 to 25 years

Furniture and fixtures and office 3 to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
Plant and machinery and 3 to 10 years

demonstration machinery

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Customer relationships and distribution agreements are
shown at historical cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value
as at the date of acquisition. The Group’s intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of distribution agreements and customer
relationships is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Customer relationships 3 to 4 years
Distribution agreements 3 years

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration is

recognised in equity.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investments and other financial assets

2.14.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and receivables. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial

assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade and
other receivables, notes receivable, rental and

other deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

2.14.2 Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

the statement of profit or loss.
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
2.16.1 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

2.16.1 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ st

31st March 2014 =

—mFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Finan

2.17.1

2.17.2

cial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in

an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and borrowings. Trade and other
payables are repayable upon receipt of invoices
and credit terms granted by suppliers are up to
90 days.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

217

2.18

2.19

Financial liabilities (continued)
2.17.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or

less, and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits which are not

restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share capital

2.21

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares

are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the

facilities to which they relate.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior period are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of each reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ st

31st March 2014 =

2.

—mFE=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
service leave is recognised when it accrues to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity
leave is not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays contributions to
state/trustee-administered funds on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employment costs when they are due.

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount

has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:
(a) Sales revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to
the customer, and the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured or when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of

goods have been passed to the buyer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Commission, service and management fee

income

Commission, service and management fee income
is recognised when the services are rendered, by
reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the actual services
provided as a proportion of the total services to
be provided.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion

basis using the effective interest rate method.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
the delivery of goods and the provision of services are

recorded as receipts in advance.
2.26 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or loss

on the straight-line basis over the period of the leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. The Group does not
recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at inception,
but performs a liability adequacy test at the end of each
reporting period by comparing its net liability regarding
the financial guarantee with the amount that would be
required if the financial guarantee would result in a
present legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation
amount, the entire difference is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss immediately.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & Bﬁ at

31st March 2014 =

3.

3.1

—HFE=A=1+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the finance
department of the Company under policies approved
by the board of directors. The finance department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The board of directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,

and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and other Asia Pacific regions and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (the
“US dollar”),

(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from

Japanese Yen, and Renminbi
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in

foreign operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ st

31st March 2014 =

—mFE=A=+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Management has set up a policy to require
entities within the Group to manage
their foreign exchange risk against their
functional currency. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the

entity’s functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated

in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US
dollar at a range of rates between 7.75 and
7.85, and therefore the foreign exchange
exposure between the US dollar and the

Hong Kong dollar is limited.

At 31st March 2014,
weakened/strengthened by 20% against the

if Japanese Yen had

Hong Kong dollar with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year would have
been HK$126,000 lower/higher (2013: loss
for the year would have been HK$4,130,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
Japanese Yen denominated trade payables

and trade receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7% & Bﬁ at

31st March 2014 =

—HFE=A=1+—H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31st March 2014, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 20% against the Hong
Kong dollar with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have
been HK$1,001,000 lower/higher (2013: loss
for the year would have been HK$1,697,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
RMB denominated trade receivables and
trade payables.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity
securities price risk or commodity price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for cash and cash
equivalents, the income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rates.

The cash and cash equivalents bear interest
at floating rates and expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk from financial liabilities
arises from borrowings. Borrowings that are
subject to variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31st March 2014, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would have been
HK$26,000 lower/higher (2013: loss for the
year would have been HK$165,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade receivables and

certain other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payment. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure
spreading over a number of counterparties and

customers.

The carrying amount of the receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets. The
credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
is considered by the Group to be minimal as the
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
counterparties. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

3.

MBRAREERE)

3.1

BMBEBREE(E)
(b) FEREME

EERRREREMREEE
A BERRTESR BS
FEUSHRIA N 35 T E A FEWTOR o

AEBECDEBBOR - AERE
miHE R AR EE KL HEERE
AR Al 2 (5@ E B 2 L B #R
B2 BT - AEEIE
Rl EMEIEREF - ARERBREL
BRI Rz B1E - It
o AEEEENEXEHE
WOsRIR 2 AT U (B B8 - DARE AR
ERTAKE 2z SRRIEH RS
ZRBEER - ARELEEX
ShzEERE  EERRS
HERZHFIREP °

iR A M ISR R Pl 2 FE UK
HEMEDAAEEE %S
TRMEEZEKNEERR - &
TR ERTT REBRTF DR $T A 3 SR 38
R EBRIFIRIT A&
B RA%ERIBZEERRIK
3 °

KRR - W EBHER(E
ERE - BEREWNEER
B T2 NEITREZEM
B8 o AEEI EFA AR
Ao AR

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT F3f

95



96

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit

lines.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises
undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the

scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities by maturity based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.

MBRAREERE)

3.1

HEKRKEEE)
(c) FHEELEREE)

TRUBEHRAREENEHA
ZHRBHRR/EE  HAKE
ERARRIBAETON -
RPBRE 2 RBRELRE
RReRE -

On demand or
less than 1 year
BRERSH1FURA

HK$'000
FET

At 31st March 2014 R-E-—WFE=ZA=+—H
Borrowings BE 2,600
Trade and other payables B 5 FE kI8 R H i & IR 114,224
116,824

At 31st March 2013 R-B—=5=H=+—H
Borrowings BE 16,504
Trade and other payables B 5 FE kI8 K E i & R IR 153,263
169,767

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from last year, was to
maintain net cash position. The net cash positions at
31st March 2014 and 31st March 2013 were analysed

as follows:

3.

MR EE )
3.2 BEXERBREERE)

BE_Z—WNF=A=t+—HIF
B AEBRAEFZERE  #R
FRERRL - R_FT-—HF=A
=St BRZZE—Z=F=A=+—
BZFEREMRAAITIAT

2014 2013
=E—NF —=—=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Borrowings (note 26) BB (fat26) 2,600 16,504
Less: Cash and cash equivalents it ReRReFEER

(note 23) (Hiz23) 572,500 556,251

Net cash FEe 569,900 539,747

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments reasonably approximate to their

fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, borrowings, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to short term

maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of notes receivable have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The carrying
amounts of notes receivable approximate to their fair

values.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom reflect the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, where it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives; and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

4.3

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policies stated in note 2.4 and note 2.6 to the financial
statements. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-
generating units which are reviewed for impairment
based on forecast operating performance and cash
flows. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value
in use calculations. Cash flow projections are prepared
on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective
of prevailing and future market conditions, and are

discounted appropriately.
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer demand and competitor actions. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting

period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.4

4.5

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets with finite
lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other

receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors as well as the current
market condition, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the provision at

the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.6

4.7

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to tax losses, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.
Provision

Management estimated the provision for onerous
contracts being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected
to be received under those non-cancellable operating
lease contracts in connection with the branded food
operation (discontinued on 31st October 2013). The
expected economic benefits were estimated based on
net discounted cash flows of the branded food operation
while unavoidable costs were the rental payments
that the Group was obligated to make under the non-

cancellable operating lease contracts.

Management conducted an assessment of the non-
cancellable contracts and made a provision of
HK$18,460,000 for onerous contracts at 31st March
2013 (note 28).

In estimating the discounted cash flows of the branded
food operation, management had used a discount rate
of 10% in 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 & Bﬁ &t

31st March 2014 =

—HFE=A=1+—H

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

5.1

5.2

Turnover and revenue

Turnover represents sales of goods, commission and
other service income. The amounts of each category of
revenue recognised from continuing operations during

the year are as follows:

5

5.1

EEERWA

EXRBRERILEER RS kEM
RIFBA - HELERBSWAR
AR FRER 2T ¢

2014 2013
—E-lmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FETT
(Restated)
(g&E=31)
Sales of goods HEEMm 888,987 674,433
Commission and other service e &E MR U A
income 18,703 59,522
907,690 733,955
Operating segment information 52 KE\ER
For management purpose, the Group, including its REEMES  A&B(BHE \/u\**ﬂ:\
joint ventures, is organised into three major reportable E)DR—(EAxEMRARLEEHE —
operating segments — hi-tech distribution and services, SREERDHEERY - & ﬁi'o'i R
branded food (discontinued on 31st October 2013) and (RZZE—=FF+A=1+—RHKIEL
fishmeal, fish oil and aquatic products (disposed of BI)RAH  FURARKEER(NRZ

on 19th September 2013). The hi-tech distribution and
services operating segment derives revenue from the

sale of goods, commission and other service income.

Z—=FNATAEHE) - 3R
EmDHEEREEEDEALESR
mn i 2= A WA - & RE R B UL
A o
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5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2

Operating segment information (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
except that finance income, finance costs as well as
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from

such measurement.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, other non-current
assets, inventories and trade and other receivables.
Unallocated assets comprise notes receivable, cash

and cash equivalents and corporate and others.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
payables, provisions and other non-current liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities comprise deferred tax liabilities,
income tax liabilities, borrowings and corporate and

others.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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B 5 R MY &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

There are no significant sales between the
segments during the year (2013: Nil). The

operating
operating

5. EBE@H - WARIEER#E)

52 RESWMERE)

FA BEDBEIBEBBEAHE(—
T——F B AFEZKERE

results for the year are as follows: N
Group rEE
Year ended 31st March 2014
BE_Z-NFE=A=1t-HLEE
Fishmeal, fish
oil and aquatic
products
Hi-tech operation
distribution (disposed of on
and services 19th September
operation 2013)
_ R RBR
=R KEEMER
Em2HR (R=B—-=%
R#EEHE NAATABHEE)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FAT
Revenue N
— Sales to external customers — HNRFHE 907,690 - 907,690
Segment results DEEE 20,291 (3,472) 16,819
Finance income iR N 5,592
Finance costs HKER (130)
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥REMAHE
expenses ZH (9,293)
Profit before income tax from BRECEXB 2 BREH
continuing operations Al 7 12,988
Income tax expense B (3,282)
Profit for the year from continuing B4 %5 2 &R % A
operations 9,706
Profit for the year from/gain on RIS EER 2
disposal of a discontinued FRaA/HERFEE
operation (note 12) ER WS (H7E12) 37,444
Profit for the year FREFI 47,150
Capital expenditure: AARRFY
Segment assets HEBAE 2,766 - 2,766
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMAKDE
capital expenditure NG 2,249
5,015
Depreciation: e
Segment assets DEEE 3,439 - 3,439
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ¥ FEMADE
depreciation wE 1,812
5,251
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. EXFE -WARSEERM®
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 5.2 REQWERE)
Group rEEH
Year ended 31st March 2013
BE-T—=F-A=t+—HILFE
Fishmeal, fish
oil and aquatic
products
Hi-tech operation
distribution  (disposed of on
and services  19th September
operation 2013) Total
N ab - AR
@R KEERERH
Em#H R (R=Z—=F
RE%E®E  NATABEE) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FiET
(Restated)
(L&)
Revenue WA
— Sales to external customers — HINRFHEE 733,955 — 733,955
Segment results VAEE S 27,639 2,052 29,691
Impairment of investments RAEECEY
in joint ventures RERE — (45,273) (45,273)
27,639 (43,221) (15,582)
Finance income HSIKA 3,718
Finance costs &R (1,608)
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ®¥REMEHE
expenses M (20,464)
Loss before income tax from BECEEE 2 RAEH
continuing operations RIEE (33,936)
Income tax expense FrEHi (4,111)
Loss for the year from continuing HEKLEHK 2
operations FRNER (38,047)
Profit for the year from a RIS EB 2
discontinued operation (note 12)  EREM (Hfst 12) 4,556
Loss for the year FNEE (33,491)
Capital expenditure: BRFR :
Segment assets NEREE 1,907 — 1,907
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ®¥REMEHE
capital expenditure BEARY 854
2,761
Depreciation: E:
Segment assets DIEE 4,284 = 4,284
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMAKDE
depreciation e 235
4,519
Write-off of property, HsEE
plant and equipment B 7 Rk 269 — 269
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5.

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5.
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Group

At 31st March 2014
ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets:
Notes receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

Corporate and others

Total assets per the consolidated

statement of financial position

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities
Income tax liabilities
Borrowings

Corporate and others

Total liabilities per the consolidated

statement of financial position

R-ZE-WNE=HA=+—H

BE

DEEE

ROBEE
EESES
RekReFEER
RN EAM

RAaPBRRRSTZ
BEAR

DEEE
AOBEEIE :
BB BEAE
FSHAaE
faE
R NEM

RaMBRARTZ
BEARE

EEE - WARSPEER(®)

52 RKESWERE)
REHPARZDBEERBBLT

S 5

Hi-tech
distribution

and services

operation
SRR
EmaH
R R# 75
HK$°000
FET

447,146

113,463

HK$°000
FET

447,146

92,227
572,500
3,412

1,115,285

113,463

438
5,093
2,600
1,159

122,753
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Group

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Hi-tech
distribution
and services

operation
PR
EmDH
KRR #E
HK$'000
FAET
At 31st March 2013 R-B-=F
=R=1+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HEEE 461,015
Unallocated assets: ROMEE :
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZHEER
Corporate and others EREAM
Total assets per the consolidated &AFBHRRERH 2
statement of financial position BELT
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities PEAR 139,197
Unallocated liabilities: AOBELE
Deferred tax liabilities EEVRARE
Income tax liabilities FERaRE
Borrowings e
Corporate and others EREAM
Total liabilities per the BEMBRRARTZ
consolidated statement of BEEE

financial position

5

EEE S WARDEER®)

5.2 RESPERE)

rEH

Fishmeal, fish
oil and aquatic
products
operation
(disposed

of on 19th
September
2013)
A - Al
RKEERZEH
(R=Z—=F
NLATHE
HE)
HK$'000
FAET

137,684

Branded

food
operation
(discontinued

on 31st
October

2013) Tota
mERmER
(R=B—=%
+A=+—H

®IEEE) BE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

11,975 610,674

556,251

3,080

1,170,005

36,406 175,603

417

2,286

16,504

1,548

196,358
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

The Group’s activities are conducted predominantly

in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Revenue by

geographical location is determined on the basis

of the destination of shipment of goods for hi-

tech distribution as well as the location of service

performed by the branded food segment.

The following table provides an analysis of the

Group’s revenue by geographical location:

EEE - WARSPEER(®)

52 RKESWERE)
HEER

(a)

KEHINEF A

AEBERBETREBARTE
NHHETT - RWE SR D2
WATIRBESBHRER D #H T
BZzEHMM  URmERmD
BAIRH 2 RIGAAELTE

.
iE °

TRE#REREL 2 AEE
WADHT

2014 2013

—E-mF =%

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation operations operation Total
BRGEXE RKULLEXE BERERE RIREXE &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TE7 AT TAT AT
Hong Kong ik - 59,802 59,802 — 120,368 120,368
Mainland China HEIA 876,621 - 876,621 699,500 — 699,500
Asia — Others Tl — Efh 31,069 - 31,069 34,455 — 34,455
Total revenue LONt: 907,690 59,802 967,492 733,955 120,368 854,323
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5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. #EH -WARSEER#E)
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Operating segment information (continued) 52 RESFER(E)
Geographical information (continued) WEEF(E)
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
The non-current asset information is based on ERBEEZERTIBIBEEE
the location of assets and excludes financial e T B TAEFEermT
instruments. Ao
The following table provides an analysis of the TR BR A R BREA R R b &
Group’s non-current assets as at the end of the B RSB ERBEEDT

reporting period by geographical location:

2013
—E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TIETT
Hong Kong B 381,399 389,045
Mainland China FR B A 181 137,899
Asia — others M — EHAh 195 325
381,775 527,269
Information about a major customer EETEEEZEH
In the current year, revenue of approximately RAREE » 49167,729,0007% T(—
HK$167,729,000 (2013: HK$97,164,000) was derived T— =4 : 97,164,000 70) 2 kA
from sales by the hi-tech distribution and services TR ERE—TED SR ES
operating segment to a single customer which TIEBENREERSE hAE
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total B UL A 42ZEHRE 10% ©
revenue.
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6. HitWARKE  FE
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net from REE 7 FEEE T 2 E A Rk
continuing operations is as follows: RN ¢
2014 2013
—2-NF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Restated)
(i E5)
Net foreign exchange gains HNEE Y 25 5 58 — 2,809
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREREZ
plant and equipment, net Wz - FEE 1,179 1,131
Reversal of provision for impairment 2 ZEKZIER
of trade and other receivables H th WK TE R (B 1 1 1B 62 —
Guarantee fee income ERERRKRA — 759
Others A 259 356
1,500 5,055
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREIBHAEFR(EHR)

AEBRFBEEEEB 2 BAEHMATN
(BR)EMR,GTA) TSR :

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F

The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

HtaE FET FAET

(Restated)

(&E75)

Cost of inventories sold BEEGFERAK 769,452 585,263
Net foreign exchange losses/ &N B8, (e ) F 58

(gains) 2,889 (1,706)
Depreciation of property, plant M - BEREETE

and equipment 15 5,251 4,519

Employment costs & AR A 8 72,455 72,674

Operating lease rentals of rented THEWMFEZKEHE

premises He 9,126 5,965
Impairment of investments in joint A& &% 2 RERE

ventures 18 —_ 45,273
Write-off of property, plant and YIE -~ R K Rk i

equipment 15 — 269

Auditors’ remuneration ZER A & 1,350 1,945
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

An analysis of employment costs including the emoluments
of the directors and chief executive and the five highest paid
individuals, from continuing operations is as follows:

& A A

SEEEEBZRAKAN (BREEERITR
wEzHEkARRRHFALZHME) DT

o

2013
=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
(Restated)
(&E7)
Directors’ fees EE2akn 1,480 1,783
Salaries, wages and allowances e TEMERN 69,682 67,033
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 750 770
Termination benefits BB AR A — 2,245
Consultancy fee EEE — 225
Retirement benefits — defined BAKREAN — AE

contribution schemes AT S 543 618
72,455 72,674

(@) The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees (a) AEEELHEESEELE -

to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the Group (the employer) and each of its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The monthly contribution of each of the employer and
employees is subject to a cap of HK$1,250 (2013:
HK$1,250) per employee and any further contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-operated
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The employees contribute fixed percentages of their
basic salaries as required by the local authorities while
the Group contributes a further amount as required
by the local authorities. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond these contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA

HBYSEAETE 2RHMEATES
TE([eafEestdll) Zardl A
—IHAERKGTE - RIFEIES T
2 AEE(EX)REEESAEE
RizEEBBRA(ERR B
MRBES I EHER) 2 5% Rt &l 1E
HEZx - BUuEEREBZTAH
KERAE1,250BIL(ZFE—=4F :
1,250 7L ) * MEBEIIMERTIE B
ﬁgo

WHRBE A2 RAIRREG - REH
RETEAMEERABERER 2R
REr 8K - BERMWITEERTE
ZERFEETE R DMK - A
SEIRZIMTHBARTE < BINEER
B BRREFRETN - NEBHE
S ERERERKE R IKERET
ZEE - ZFBEREPRNRTEIA
BERENEE SN2 RERE -
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of directors and the chief executive
for the year ended 31st March 2014 is set out below:

BARA#)
(b) ESBRTHEAZMS

BHE-_T—NF=A=+—HBILF
EREERITHAAH 2 2 H#7 a0
I

*

Employer’s

contributions

Discretionary  to retirement

Salaries bonus schemes
BiRctEz
¥e mERa EIEH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET FET FEr FET
Executive director HTES
Mr. Ding Yi TG %% 240 3,756 750 15 4,761
Non-executive directors HTES
Mr. James Tsiolis James Tsiolis 7t £ 280 - - - 280
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee BUALE 240 - - - 240
Independent BUEHGES
non-executive directors
Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming FERBALE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King TEDEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse ~ 2Ea%4E 240 - - - 240
1,480 3,756 750 15 6,001
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8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. EARA®)
(b) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (b) EBRTHREARM<(Z)
(continued)
The remuneration of directors and chief executive for BE—_ZT—=F=A=+—HIHF
the year ended 31st March 2013 is set out below: EREERITHRAR 2 3NS5
T
Employer's
contributions
Termination to retirement
Fees Salaries benefits schemes Total
BIRGHEIZ
ik &e BREMN EXHH ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Yu Wang Tak" F Vbt 200 2518 1,500 13 4,231
Mr. Ding Yi" TigsA" 38 400 — 3 441
Non-executive directors FUTEE
Mr. Yu Wang Tak" F Vbt 13 — 120 — 133
Mr. Takeshi Kadota"’ Takeshi Kadota %24 " 213 = 120 - 333
Mr. Jason Matthew Brown"™  Jason Matthew Brown %4 " 171 — — — 171
Mr. James Tsiolis James Tsiolis 7t £ 280 — — — 280
Mr. Goran Sture Mam"! Goran Sture Malm 4" 109 — = — 109
Mr. Joseph Chan Nap Kee"  BRizgss" 27 — = — 27
Independent BUEHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Philip Ma King Huen"” Fatxs" 231 = 260 = 491
Mr. Kenny Tam King Ching"™ 44" 266 = 205 = 491
Mr. George Forrai” George Forrai 4 154 = 20 — 174
Mr. Stephen Luk Kai Ming"  [EERER%&4" 27 = - = 27
Mr. Kenneth Kon Hiu King"” ~ FEES£4" 27 = - = 27
Mr. Joseph Liang Hsien Tse"  R&@ja%4" 27 = - = 27
1,783 2,918 2,245 16 6,962
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31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

There was no other arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Relinquished his executive responsibilities on the board
of directors as chairman and executive director of the
Company and re-designated as a non-executive director
on 2nd February 2013; resigned on 19th February 2013

as a non-executive director.
Appointed on 4th February 2013
Resigned on 19th February 2013
Resigned on 17th December 2012
Retired on 14th September 2012
Appointed on 19th February 2013

Appointed on 30th June 2012 and resigned on 19th
February 2013

8. EAMAE)
(b) EBRTHRARMS(E)

BE_T—NUEK_T—=F=8
=+—HLEFE BEESFREH
LB E SR B MEEAME o

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

R-ZE—=F-A-BHEARRE
EEEFERNTES  WHITREH
TEE R=ZE—=6-A+thB#&
EFEITES ©

R-ZT—=F_ANBEZE
R-ZE—=F"A+LBEE
RZE—Z—F+ZA+LBEE
RZT——FNA+MERE
REE—=F-"A+tNAEZ®E

WZB—ZEAAS T BEEERR
—B-=HZBHARBE
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

8. EMPLOYMENT COSTS (continued) 8. ERRA&®)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) EBEBRESHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the REERFAMESHRRZARAL
highest in the Group for the year include 1 (2013: 1) PRE— & ZE—=F: —&%)=E

£ EMSEREX2RZAHH
R - FRNEAREFALZHE
mT

director whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the five

highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

116

2013

=%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and bonuses % - 2Bt RIEAL 11,559 11,747
Employer’s contributions to RIRET 82 B EHER

retirement schemes 58 108

Termination benefits BRI AR A — 1,620

11,617 13,475

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands:

EEReEHFALHESETIEASE
En :

2013

—TE—=4F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A& A&

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7c 2 1,500,000 % 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L& 2,000,000 % 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L& 2,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % c 2 3,000,000 % 7T — 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & L& 4,500,000 % 7T — 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 L & 5,000,000 % 7T 1 —
5 5
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9. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

TEMENTS

An analysis of finance income and costs from continuing

operations is as follows:

MBRARER

SECEEB MBI ARE RSN
T

2014 2013
—EB-—nmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(& E5)
Finance income: BRI
Interest income from bank deposits  $RITERZ K B A 3,888 3,718
Interest income from notes receivable  fEUWZE & 2 F S UL A 468 ==
Increase in discounted amounts 8 ey R AR i T 28 A 2
arising from the passage of time e xEE 875 —
Net foreign exchange gains BB R B IMNE W 55 F 5
on financing activities 361 —
5,592 3,718
Finance costs: MBEAR
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 130 504
Net foreign exchange losses Bh A E E)HNE B85 5
on financing activities — 1,104
130 1,608
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. Frf8Bix i
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until KRR ERRPBMNEREREEEZT
2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate — NG o BEFIETBE A E R S
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for FIETREA6.5% (ZF —=%F : 16.5%)&T
the year. & o
Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to the 7R B A B K 2 2 B B R R B 3% 25% (=
Mainland China corporate income tax at the standard rate of T =% :26%) 2 BREBREHHHEA
25% (2013: 25%). M ZEFTBH ©
Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland HEINE S K B A PASN ) i R 2 B 1B T
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated ERN 2 EETERPUE MR A& B8 & A
assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates of FErREEER 2 RITEABRETE -
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
The amounts of income tax expense from continuing ARG EERRT IRELEEBE
operations recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or S8R
loss represent:
2013
—ZE—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current taxation B HTE
Hong Kong profits tax BFENEH
— current year — REE 2,777 2,286
— overprovision in prior years — BEFEBERE — (324)
Mainland China corporate income tax B R 1 ST ISR
— current year — NEE 490 197
Overseas taxation TINRIE
— overprovision in prior years — BAFEBRERE - (38)
Deferred taxation ERER IR 15 1,990
3,282 4,111
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The amount of tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income
tax from continuing operations differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to the loss of the consolidated entities as follows:

10.

EHZHE)

AEBFRBEEEEB 2 BAEHANER,
(BR)ZHEcHRRRREANGEER
BRZIMEFOREFEZERERE
20T

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(s E5)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BT S BAm A, (E518) 12,988 (33,936)
Tax expense calculated at the average 2@ BN BRI alAER ST,
domestic tax rates applicable to (&) 2 P MBI RFTE 2
profits/(losses) in the respective TRIESZ B
jurisdictions (2,620) (9,506)
Tax effect of: MBHLE
— income not subject to tax — BIART 2 WA 6,232 1,085
— expenses not deductible for tax — PAHIF 2 ZH (3,467) (8,973)
— profits and losses attributable to ~ — & & 2 e A & &5 18
joint ventures 374 14,081
— overprovision in prior years — BABEFEE 2 BERE — 362
— tax losses not recognised — RERZBIEERE (3,896) (852)
— others — Hi 95 (308)
Tax expense FRIBX (3,282) (4,111)

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the weighted average
applicable tax rate was 20.2% (2013: 28.0% (restated)). The
change in the weighted average applicable tax rate is caused
by a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the respective jurisdictions.

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting to
HK$374,000 (2013: HK$14,081,000) is included in “Share
of profits and losses of joint ventures” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of
the Company for the year ended 31st March 2014 includes a
loss of HK$8,115,000 (2013: loss of HK$3,609,000) that has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

11.

REE-Z-—ME=F=+—HILFE
BERAMEFEHHRE B202%(ZF —=
F 1 28.0% (&£ EF)) o BAMEFHH X
FE) AR EBAREER 2 AEERB A
A2 BFIRE B EFTER

AEPERETRIE374,0008 (=T —=
F :14,081,000/870) BT ARG ER K
AETERMEEFIRER] -

AN A R REMEEF,(BER)

HE_T-—NE=-ZA=+—HIEFEEZ
AARBREGEZE T (EEB)BE
E5 188,115,000 (=T —=4F : Fig
3,609,000/87T) ' ERARRFHBHRERA
BRI o
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. RIEREXK
On 29th August 2013, the Group entered into a sale and RZZE—=F/\A=Z+A1A8 - ZFE@%TTL
purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interests in Smart —NEEHEALEERERERA
Tactic Limited and its subsidiaries (“Smart Tactic Group”). EWBEAR([AR %IJ)Z%»:WE”\ o ﬁﬁ
Smart Tactic Group engaged in branded food operation. REERERERRER - AEBRTE
The Group decided to cease its branded food operation IFERBERMER .Z%EEJE%$E.@
because it enables the Group to reserve more resources on BE ZERRBNE SRR E @D i KRR
its hi-tech distribution and services operation and explore e Y j’ﬁéﬁﬂ@ﬁ“ﬁ&%ﬁ » AR THRR
future investment to enhance shareholders’ value. Details HEE- - FBERAA —E—=FNA
are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29th _-i—jLEH'J?"Z’“iW?&Eé c HEBAKE
August 2013. The disposal of Smart Tactic Group has been ER=_ZE—=F+H=1T—HB%X
completed on 31st October 2013.
With the disposal of Smart Tactic Group, the results from ALEAREE EREEZEERNTE
Smart Tactic Group were no longer included in the Group’s FHETKECTBTARNEBR 2 ¥4 -
results subsequent to the completion of disposal.
HK$°000
FAEIT
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE :
Rental and other deposits HekEMmES 5,719
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBFeFEEE 271
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE Wk TE K H Ath FE SR IE 5,148
Inventories FE 883
Trade and other payables B 5 &1~ 58 I HL PR A 38 (22,387)
Provisions BiE (15,928)
(26,294)
Transaction costs paid BRI ZKA 4,560
Gain on disposal of a discontinued HER IS E 2
operation g 37,334
15,600
Satisfied by: ATE A
Cash He 15,600
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. RIEREXEK @)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HERIEKCEEB 2B RASFEEE
in respect of the disposal of a discontinued operation is as MAFREZOTT
follows:
2014
—E-lmF
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration BeNRE 15,600
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEReIREEFHEER (271)
Transaction cost paid BEAR S (4,560)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HERIFELEK 7B E K
of the disposal of a discontinued operation ReSEEERAFRE 10,769

The results of Smart Tactic Group for the year (up to date of

disposal) are presented below:

AREENFABREHERN) 2XER

FEATE

2014 2013
—E-OF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue A 59,802 120,368
Expenses ] (58,633) (112,028)
Finance costs MEER (1,059) (3,784)
Profit before tax R 25 A Al 110 4,556
Income tax expense FERi = — —
Profit after tax R 7 1% 5 A 110 4,556
Gain on disposal of a discontinued HERIEEEEL 2
operation Wz 37,334 —
Profit for the year from a discontinued #R IF&&E 752
operation F RN A 37,444 4,556
Earnings per share, from the ISR 2
discontinued operation: BRAN :
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR R #EGEAN) 2.78 0.34
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. RIEREEK @)
The net cash flows incurred by Smart Tactic Group (up to date BAREE(HEHEEH ELEZESRE
of disposal) are as follows: SHEAT
2013
—mE —E—=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Operating activities LEIEE (5,845) (16,127)
Investing activities HEEE — 59
Financing activities BEEE) 3,433 13,786
Net cash outflows & (2,412) (2,282)
Earnings per share, from the I EREE 2

discontinued operation: BIRAF :

Basic and diluted (HK cents) BN R EEE BN 2.78 0.34
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from RIEEEEB 2 ERERNREFRF TR
the discontinued operation are based on: BTI&EAE

2014 2013
—Z2-—ImF —ZT—=
Profit attributable to ordinary RIEREEB 2B REZ

shareholders of the parent from the — EiBARARER fE1G

discontinued operation (HK$) @M GEor) 37,444,000 4,556,000
Weighted average number of ordinary BR i EEERK

shares in issue during the year used #8&EF z FRD T

in the basic and diluted earnings TR 2 Nt T2

per share calculation (Hiat 14)

(note 14) 1,345,938,948 1,345,989,715

122 NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3 B &

31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

13. DIVIDENDS 13.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil).

For the year ended 31st March 2013, a special dividend of
HK20 cents per ordinary share, as adjusted for the Capital
Reorganisation on 17th September 2012 (note 24(a)),
amounting to HK$269,188,000 was paid on 9th October 2012.

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the Group’s profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

RE

EFUTEBREREZE_ZT—NEF=A
=t HAEFEZEFARBEE(ZE—=
FE) o

BE_Z-—=F=-A=1t—HLEFE"
A% EFREBK20BI(ER=F—
FNA++EBZBRANEHAELFHZ
24(a))) » A%269,188,000/ 8 LER ==
——F+ANBIES -

=iy |‘ :m

BRER,(FR)
SREXRF(BR)

SREARF, (B1R) o742 AR
(EARE 2R (B8 B A RE BT
B2 AT B -

2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation Total
BELERE  RIESERH RERESH  BIEELS @t
Profit/(loss) attributable A B R ek
to shareholders of the  J7,/(&58)
Company (HK$'000) (FiET) 9,706 37,444 47,150 (38,047) 4,556 (33,491)
Weighted average BETLERZ
number of ordinary MEFHE
shares in issue* 1,345,938,948  1,345,938,948  1,345,938,948 | 1,345939,715  1,345939,715  1,345,939,715
Basic earnings/(loss) ~ BREREF|/(EE)
per share (HK cents) — (&fl) 0.72 2.78 3.50 (2.83) 0.34 (2.49)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31st March 2013 has been adjusted for the Capital
Reorganisation (as defined in note 24(a) to these financial
statements) taken place on 17th September 2012.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss)
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31st March
2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution as the Group did not
have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013.

* BE_Z—=F=A=+—HILFEZLAE
BEFABERR —F——FNAA+LH
ETZBRAEAGER RSB MAME
24(a)) fEHRE -

SRBEER(FHE)

HRAEEREE_Z—NEFR_T—=
FZA=t—BIFEXEEMEEEE
BERETEBEE  SUEREEHAEE—F
—NFER_E-—=ZF=A=+—HIFE
R BREARF(ER)SEEDLHR

= o
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥¥ - BERRZE
Group KEE
Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery
HE & %BUR MERAENR
NELB BAERE j TEHE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2014 “E-ME=fA=1-H
At 1st April 2013; RZE-=4MA-H:
Cost AR 38,606 23,254 1,205 30,026 93,091
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERAE
impairment (37,869) (20,329) (418) (25,858) (84,474)
Net carrying amount REFE 737 2,925 787 4,168 8,617
At 1st April 2013, net of accumulated R =E—=FMA—AH
depreciation and impairment Mk 2547 E RiAfE 737 2,925 787 4,168 8,617
Additions HE 950 890 990 2,185 5,015
Disposals e - (11) (39) (1,931) (1,981)
Depreciation (note 7) wEMWZ7) (415) (1,564) (1,247) (2,025) (5,251)
Exchange realignment 5 A% - (18) (9) - (27)
At 31st March 2014, net of RZE-mE=A=+-H"
accumulated depreciation MR Z5HTE RilfE
and impairment 1,272 2,222 482 2,397 6,373
At 31st March 2014: R-E-NE=A=1-H:
Cost KAE 2,443 13,913 2,026 13,426 31,808
Accumulated depreciation and ZiHE RiAfE
impairment (1,171) (11,691) (1,544) (11,029) (25,435)
Net carrying amount EmFE 1,272 2,222 482 2,397 6,373
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. V¥ - RERRHE#Z)

Group KEE
Furniture, Plant and
fixtures machinery and
Leasehold and office Motor  demonstration
improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
HE & ZEUR TR Rk 22 b &
nEEE WAERME RE mEEE ki
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT FAET FHET
31st March 2013 —Z-=f=f=1-H
At 1st April 2012; W-F-—4mA-R:
Cost KA 52,000 751 30,203 111,044
Accumulated depreciation and ZMERA(E
impairment (50,815) (23,746) (394) (25,440) (100,395)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,185 4,344 357 4,763 10,649
At 1st April 2012, net of accumulated R=E——FNA—AH
depreciation and impairment MR EHERAE 1,185 4,344 357 4763 10,649
Additions hE — 463 705 1,593 2,761
Disposals HE (203) (81) (267) (36) (587)
Write-off HisH — (269) - — (269)
Depreciation (note 7) TEMHE7) (248) (1,577) (25) (2,669) (4,519)
Transfer from inventories ERERE — — — 517 517
Exchange realignment R 3 45 17 = 65
At 31st March 2013, net of RZE-=%=A=+-R"
accumulated depreciation and M 257 E RiAfE
impairment 737 2,925 787 4,168 8,617
At 31st March 2013; RZF-=FMA-H:
Cost KAME 38,606 1,205 30,026 93,091
Accumulated depreciation and RAHERAE
impairment (37,869) (418) (25,858) (84,474)
Net carrying amount REFE 737 787 4,168 8,617
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BE&EE

7D

Group AEE

Development

Customer Distribution rights and
Goodwill  relationships agreements  franchise fees
RREN
EFBf& At BHEER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2014 —E-ME=fA=+-H
At 1st April 2013: RZE-=4MmA-A:
Cost KAE 373,692 19,010 16,750 2,992 412,444
Accumulated amortisation and RitBELAE
impairment - (19,010) (16,750) (2,992) (38,752)
Net carrying amount REFE 373,692 - - - 373,692
At 1st April 2013 and 31st March ~ R=Z—=#NA-HkK
2014, net of accumulated “T-ME=A=1+-H"
amortisation and impairment Mk 2T ERRE 373,692 - - - 373,692
At 31st March 2014: R-E-NE=A=1-H:
Cost KAE 373,692 19,010 16,750 - 409,452
Accumulated amortisation and R EERAE
impairment - (19,010) (16,750) - (35,760)
Net carrying amount FmFE 373,692 - - - 373,692
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. BREE#)
Group KEE
Development
Customer Distribution rights and
Goodwill  relationships agreements  franchise fees Others Total
EREN
AE EF@AR D # S BaHEER £t &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
31st March 2013 —E-=F=f=1-H
At 1st April 2012: W-ZE——EmA-§:
Cost KAME 373,692 19,010 16,750 2,992 60 412,504
Accumulated amortisation  RF B RHE
and impairment — (19,010) (16,750) (2,992) (60) (38,812)
Net carrying amount REFE 373,692 — - - - 373,692

At 1st April 2012 and 31st R=T——£EA—-HR

March 2013, net of “E-=F=f=1—
accumulated amortisation B - 1% 25t 5
and impairment RAfE 373,692 = = = = 373,692
At 31st March 2013; W-E—=F=A=t+-H:

Cost KAfE 373,692 19,010 16,750 2,992 — 412,444
Accumulated amortisation 2zt Ri{E

and impairment — (19,010) (16,750) (2,992) — (38,752)
Net carrying amount BE*E 373,692 - - - - 373,692
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to operating segments. A segment-level

summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

Hi-tech distribution and services operation SRHXE 5 5 & RIEG £

16.

BEEE®)
BRI
BEDREGENESIREAEERSE

EBA - pEEEZEESESEZ YW
T
Group
rEE
2013
=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FHETT
373,692 373,692

Hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the hi-tech distribution and
services operation cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 14% (2013: 12%). Due
to the uncertainty, no growth rate was used to extrapolate the
cash flows of the hi-tech distribution and services operation

cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculations
of the hi-tech distribution and services operation cash-
generating unit for the years ended 31st March 2014 and
2013. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Distribution rights — The continuance of the distribution
rights for the hi-tech distribution and services operation in
the foreseeable future would not need any additional costs or

investment.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is based on
past performance and management’s expectations for market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are pre-tax and

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company’s statement of financial position, details of

interests in subsidiaries are as follows:

17. RIB ARz s

RARRBZMBEHREKA > RBEBRE 2
s 2 BT

Company
RKAF]
2014 2013
ki —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - REKANE — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries, included FEUHIEBRAFIFIE @ 5t A

in non-current assets (note 36(b)) EmENE E (B17#36(b)) 903,570 932,019

903,570 932,019

Provision for impairment BB (280,782) (279,785)

622,788 652,234

An impairment was recognised for balances due from
subsidiaries with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$280,782,000 (2013: HK$279,785,000) which are
considered to be not recoverable as the subsidiaries were

loss-making.

In the opinion of the directors, the amounts due from
subsidiaries as included in non-current assets are quasi-

equity loans to the subsidiaries.

HRZENB A RSEER MEHE
R3NP W Bl 2 fE W B B8 A B 45 BR AR TE
4 {H280,782,000/% (= & — = & :
279,785,000 /& 7T ) HERRE ©

BEERR HAFRBDEEZERKMER
AREARAKB ARG Z EEEER -
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company, which, in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group as at 31st March 2014.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Name

a8

American Tec Company
Limited
EDEFHRBRAR

American Tec Electronic
India Private Limited*

NAS American Tec
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (ii)*

Jb R (FRM)
BRAA (i)

North Asia Strategic (HK)
Limited (i)
TR (EE)BRAR ()

Place of incorporation or
establishment/operation
MR LR LB,
BEwH

Hong Kong

BE

India
N

People’s Republic of China
(“PRC")/Mainland China

REARANE
(B ),/ HER

Hong Kong
BE

Principal activities

TEXEH

Trading of SMT equipment
and investment holding
SMT REE 5 RIREARR

Provision of machinery
installation, training,
business promotion,
repair and maintenance
services

RegRRE
R - #ERRERS

Trading of electronic
products, machinery and
spare parts and provision
of repair and installation
services

EfEm KERTHHES
I RSR A4 R 2 E R

Provision of management
services and investment
holding

RUEEERERREER
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RSB A B 2B (&)

NTEHIN—ZE-—MF=A=+—HEF
RRERFEAEEAFE BB
SEEEFEIZHD Z2ARAEIENE
RAEE  -BEEZRAR - FIEMHERR
SEYR\BNITE °

Percentage
of equity
interest held

Particulars of issued
share capital/

registered capital by the Group

BRITRAE/ AEE i

A RAEZAD

60,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
of HK$1 each
60,000,000 %
SREBE BT ERR

1,879,000 ordinary shares of 100%
INR10 each
1,879,000 %
SREAEI10EL 2 LR

US$1,000,000 100%
1,000,000 7T

1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%

TRE{E BT & B
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation or

Name establishment/operation
SRR L
£H Tew

Tianjin American Tec PRC/Mainland China

Trading Company HRE /B R
Limited (i)*
RZRBETARE S

BRAF (i)

EEETEFRE(RINE
R (i)

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R E R,

Notes:

17. RB AR 2= #)

Particulars of issued
share capital/

Principal activities registered capital

BRTRE/

TEER EMERFE
Trading of electronic US$200,000
products and spare parts 200,000 7T

BT ERRTHHES

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 %7t

Trading of electronic
products, machinery and
spare parts and provision
of repair and installation
services

BTER BERTHHES
R R A 4 8 R 2 5 TR

Percentage

of equity
interest held
by the Group
FEBfE
RAEZED

100%

100%

Shares of this company are held directly by the Company.
Shares of the other companies as listed in this table are held

indirectly.

These are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC to operate for up to 30 years until 2023 to 2039.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

ZARZBMBARRRERITE o ERMAF
Hib AR 2B in ThRESE

BETIRFBRKR Y ZINEBE RS - K& H
B =+FEE_T_=FRH=_T=NF -

W I B KR E BTk 2ok & &t
BRI 2 EABMR 2 KL B R REX -
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

18. REELEZRE

Group

rEE
2014 2013
=F-mF =E==5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Share of net assets BIEEEFE — 176,386
Goodwill on acquisition B =R 7 E — 6,571
—_ 182,957
Provision for impairment WIERE — (45,273)
—_ 137,684

The Group subscribed for 100,000,000 non-redeemable
convertible preferred shares of Coland Group Limited
(“Coland”). Upon full conversion of the preferred shares to
ordinary shares, the Group would have a 40% equity interest
in Coland. In accordance with an agreement between the
Group and the other joint venturer, all matters relating to
Coland required joint approval by both parties. Therefore,
Coland had been accounted for as a joint venture. Coland
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the refining
and sale of fish oil, processing and sale of fishmeal,
manufacture and sale of aquatic feed products, aquaculture

and processing and sale of aquatic products.

The recoverable amounts of the investments in Coland as
at 31st March 2013, which included the carrying amount
of goodwill, were determined at the higher of the value in
use and the fair value less cost of disposal. In determining
the value in use of the investments, the Group estimated its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from dividend to be received and from its
ultimate disposal. The impairment loss recognised for the year
ended 31st March 2013 was estimated based on the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from dividend to be received and its ultimate disposal which

was lower than the carrying value of the investment in Coland.
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AEECERBEEEEARABA(HED
2 100,000,000 A& A~ 7] & 2] A] #2 i 8 55 A%
- REELBREBERASTBREK A%
B R SR 40% AR - RIEAKE
BE—RR0XIYZHE  AHESEZ
—YIEEAKLITHNET KFAHE - Bt -
SREIAR—THAERE -  SRNRENE
RAEBRERBBREEE - RMMNT
FMIHE KEFMEMBEREE  KE
BIENMKEEMINTREE °

R-ZE—=F=A=+—H ReE2i&E
Z A El5 R (RIE R 2 REE) DiRER
BERARBEREEXNIAMEZRSEE
E o RETREZEAEER  AEEG
HEGEIARRIR SR ZIRE - RIEEHEE
HBEL 2 IR E R AR EMEE - REBE
—E—=F=-A=t+—HUIEFERRZRE
518 TR R TE AR A UK ER 2 IR B R EL AR
& MELEZGEFARRBES TR ZB AN G
i DERRER SR ZRAEE -
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31st March 2014 —E—ME=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18. REBLEZRE®)

On 8th July 2013, the Group entered into an agreement

RIE—=F+ANB  AEETILHZE

(the “Agreement”) to dispose of 100% of preferred shares (T#ZBs]) AR EE RS EE 2 100% 8 4%

of Coland (the “Coland Disposal”). Details of the Coland
Disposal are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 8th July 2013 and the Company’s circular dated 12th
August 2013. The disposal of Coland has been completed on

19th September 2013.

BR(=ELEFR] FEAEFHEZH

BRARNRIBEHA-Z—=F+tANEZ
RNERAARBRA=ZT—=FNA+=
BZBEPHE HESER_T—=F
NA+NBZEK -

2014
ke

HK$°000
FET
Share of net assets of joint ventures disposed of EEEHEAL ¥ 2 EEFE 137,757
Reclassification adjustment for exchange Hit ARG EmR 2 EN =5
difference included in the consolidated EH B H HFHE
statement of profit or loss (32,289)
Transaction cost paid BRRSKA 8,381
Gain on disposal of joint ventures EaEbE s e 23,835
137,684
Satisfied by: LATRFI AR -
Cash Be 46,800
Notes receivable EWE & 90,884
137,684
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEALPE HSLESZEEE RA
respect of the disposal of joint ventures is as follows: SEEE T DITAR
2014
—E-F
HK$°000
FHET
Cash consideration ReERE 46,800
Transaction cost paid BERNRSEA (8,381)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEEErECReREEFHEER
respect of the disposal of joint ventures MAFEE 38,419
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 18.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s joint ventures:

Share of the joint ventures’ results up to the date of disposal:

TREIAREZ LR ZHBER

REEBREIRE S
AN
=]

=2

BEHEFRTHAHENLEEPREZE

2014 2013

=T MF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Revenue WA 282,032 597,664

Expenses S (285,109) (582,206)

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETIS R AT F, (&) (3,077) 15,458

Income tax expense R (374) (14,081)

Non-controlling interests FE ) 1 R 2 (21) 675

Profit/(loss) after tax BB EF, (Ei8) (3,472) 2,052

Other comprehensive income H 2w 3,545 768
Total comprehensive income FAZE W=

for the year 4azE 73 2,820
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

18.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Share of the joint ventures’ assets and liabilities as at 31st

18. REBLEZRE®)

R-E—=F=ZH=1—HELELPF

March 2013: ZEEREE -

2013
S ==
HK$'000
FET

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE 153,189
Current assets mENEE 342,734
495,923

LIABILITIES BE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (10,130)
Current liabilities mEaE (304,858)
(314,988)
Non-controlling interests FEFE B MRS (4,549)
Net assets BEFE 176,386
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

19. NOTES RECEIVABLE 19. BRERE
Group
REH
2014 2013
ik —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Notes receivable FEME IR 92,227 =
Less: Non-current portion Ji - IEMENER D 45,583 —
Current portion mENEL 5 46,644 —
The notes receivable of HK$92,227,000 represent the JEUEE#5 92,227, 000 B LIE B T | £
consideration payable by Mr. Wong Chun, the purchaser, in L ESEZEMNKE -
relation to the Coland Disposal.
The notes receivable are guaranteed by Coland and are B EREEEEDER - WAERRS
secured by charged shares, being all present and future fully (BIFTERKE R R 2H2HE R ERERE
participating and voting shares which in any event represent R - EEMABER TEERESHEET
40% of the entire issued capital of Coland. The notes MRZR 2 40% ) ;AR o 52 55 FE I R 4R 1% 5 7
receivable bear interest at 1% per annum and repayable on E1EHERDINEARZERRERZE
the maturity dates falling on the first and second anniversaries —REZBEFIHHABEIZZE-—WFNA
of the notes receivable, i.e., 19th September 2014 and 19th THhARZZ—RAFNAT+ILA)EE -
September 2015, respectively.
20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HERBDEE
Group
REH
2014 2013
—B—NEF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETL
Rental and other deposits e kH L 1,710 7,276
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

21.

22,

INVENTORIES 21. 78

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—2-NF -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Raw materials Rt — 757
Finished goods RUBK oh 2,120 1,646
Consumables SHAES — 369
2,120 2,772

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. EZRWFREAREMEKRIR

Group Company
TEE AT
2014 2013 PLR: 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FEr
Trade and bills B ZRKGHIER
receivables U E % 64,550 75,467 — —
Less: Impairment of Ji : & 5 EUWFKIE
trade receivables B — (2,382) — =
Trade and bills B 5 EYGRIE K
receivables, net EWELE - F5E
(note (a)) (Ht3# (a)) 64,550 73,085 — —
Prepayments SELRE/CE 1,063 2,915 — —
Rental deposits — M&EE —
current portion mENEB D 830 3,498 — —
Other receivables  Hfth &8 220 4,215 132 57
66,663 83,713 132 57
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on letters of credit or documents against payment, and
in some cases granting a credit period of 30 to 90 days,
except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. An ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables, based on invoice date and net of

impairment, as at the end of the reporting period is as

22. BESRWRERAEMEWVRRIEE)

(a)

BEZRERER EKRRE

REBHEREFPHETEE 2GR —RK
RERBXNRRE  MENEF
CERNTFIHEZEVATEREE
B HFEF—REZELEMRR
Sho RERSRHEASK - RIZZZHH -
B 5 FE W R IE K B W AR N BRI (B
ZERERDMTIAT -

follows:

Group

REE
2014 2013

—E-NF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
90 days or less 90 Hak A T~ 44,662 49,116
91 to 180 days 91HZ= 180 H 3,858 12,910
181 to 270 days 181 HZ270H 12,970 7,963
271 to 365 days 271 HZE 365 H 2,923 3,096
Over 365 days B8 365 H 137 —
64,550 73,085

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Since the Group’s trade and bills receivables relate to
a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade and bills receivable balances.
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

As at 31st March 2014, trade receivables of
HK$16,030,000 (2013: HK$11,059,000) were past
due but not impaired, as they related to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade

and bills receivables is as follows:

22. BSZEWREARAEMEVRRE )
(a) EBZERUREREBURE(E)

R—_ZE-—WE=A=+—8"
16,030,000 (= T — = F ¢
11,059,000 % 7T 2 B 5 FE WK IAE,
BHEY ERE - TRREERS
JE WK IE 3 I B 93 37 3 3 4% 346 X &0
BBURE - 2SE 5 EWRIE
MEWEER ZRRDITAT ¢

Group
REE
2014 2013
—ZT—F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Over 6 months and up to 9 months 61EAZE91EA 12,970 7,963
Over 9 months BiE 91 A 3,060 3,096
16,030 11,059

As at 31st March 2013, trade and bills receivables of
HK$2,382,000 were impaired and fully provided for. The

ageing of these receivables is as follows:

Over 9 months B o & A

R—T—=Z=%#=ZA=+—8"
2,382,000 7T 2 & 5 FE U R IE K g
U 22 1% 3R R (B N & B0 4 B o
ZEEWGRIE 2 BRECIAT ¢

Group
El
2014 2013
—2-NF ===
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
— 2,382
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Movements of the impairment of trade receivables are

22. BSZEWREREMERRE )

EZRWHREARBRRE(Z)
BIRBIEREZZEBMT

as follows:
Group
R EE
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year F4 2,382 2,374
Impairment losses reversed (B B R ] (62) —
Amount written off as uncollectible XU E 2 #Um £ 58 (2,320)
Exchange realignment M 3 8 — 8
At end of year Fx — 2,382

The creation or release of provision for impaired

receivables has been included in the statement of profit

or loss. Amounts charged to the allowance account are

BB E R KR IR 2 B R RS
BIABSRAN - BRI SHE—
FUrE R - AR B ERINER 2K

generally written off when there is no expectation of

recovering the amounts any further.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

22. EZRWHRRAREMEBWRRIEE)
(a) BZERWREREWRE(E)

AEEESREFBARBRERZ

FREEN TIIEBRER

Group

REH
2014 2013

—EF—F —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 419 350
US dollar EViv 18,057 34,573
RMB AR 6,190 9,214
Japanese Yen =1 39,635 28,689
Other currencies Hith & 249 259
64,550 73,085

(b) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of the trade and

other receivables.

(b) RBEHHKR RREEERBRRES
JREMS R TR % At B YRR 2 BRTEI(EL

2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT F3f

141



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 & MY &

31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERRESEEER
Company
RATH
2014 2014 2013
—E-—OF —E—MmF —E—=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET TFET
Cash at banks and BT R FFERE
on hand 174,031 232,486 11,846 73,121
Time deposits TEHATF K 398,469 323,765 398,225 323,510
Cash and cash RekREEE
equivalents HH 572,500 556,251 410,071 396,631
At 31st March 2014, the effective interest rate on short-term R-_EFE—pNE=H=+—H ' SHET
bank deposits was approximately 0.83% (2013: 0.56%) per FRZERENZELE083%(ZE—=
annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 21 days E:056%) ° WEFHZEHTEAEE &
(2013: 24 days). 21H(ZZ—=%:24H)-
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following HEeRBESEEB A TIEE BN :
currencies:
Group Company
rEH RRQFE
2013
===
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BIT 433,493 323,623 408,163 317,923
US dollar ET 85,298 181,268 1,908 78,708
RMB AR 33,169 16,630 — —
Japanese Yen = 19,809 31,712 — —
Other currencies Hin g% 731 3,018 — —
572,500 556,251 410,071 396,631
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 23. BEeRBRLEEER @)

REFRER AEEUARBFHEZR
© R R 17 4 # /533,169,000 (= T
—=:16,630,000/&7T) - AREETAI B
RARBHME A - REFEAM
SNEEIR DI RAE EERMNEEER
EASERETRREREITINEEL
RITHARBEBSHEME -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$33,169,000 (2013: HK$16,630,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BX

Ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each

Preference shares
of HK$0.01 each

BR0.01 BT 2EBER BR0.01 BT ZEER
Ordinary Preference
Number share Number share
of shares capital of shares capital Total
RGBE  EBRRA ROBE  BERRA #Em
Note ‘000 HK$000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vi3 T TET TR TETL TET
Authorised: ETE
At 31st March 2013 and ~ RZT—=FR
2014 —T-F
=A=1+—-H 40,000,000 400,000 30,000,000 300,000 700,000
Issued: B#T:
At 1st April 2012 RZZE-ZF
mA—H 13,465,959 134,660 = — 134,660
Cancellation of shares FHERBERR
repurchased (6,570) (66) — — (66)
Share consolidation B & B (a) (12,113,450) (121,135) — — (121,135)
At 31st March 2013, RZZE—=F
1st April 2013 and =H=1—H"
31st March 2014 —T-=f
mMA—B R
i St
=A=+—-H 1,345,939 13,459 — — 13,459
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

Pursuant to the special resolution passed on 14th

September 2012, the capital reorganisation (the “Capital

Reorganisation”) which became effective on 17th

September 2012 consisted of the following:

Share consolidation, whereby every 10 issued
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
1 ordinary share of HK$0.10 (the “Consolidated
Share”);

Capital reduction, whereby the par value of each
issued Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09 of
the paid-up capital on each issued Consolidated
Share and the total number of Consolidated
Shares was rounded down to a whole number by
eliminating any fraction of a Consolidated Share in
the issued share capital of the Company following

the share consolidation; and

The credit arising from the capital reduction was
transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company such that the Company may
apply such surplus in any manner as it considers
appropriate subject to compliance with the

Companies Act.
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24. BRA(#)

(a)

RER-T——FAATHARB

ZERRFER

RZTE—=—F 1A

TERERZEASTSERAE
HDBEUTRE :

BRip&dt BB 10RERE
H0.01 B TZEEITRHES
HAE1BREMECA0EB T LR
BRT&H’RMD L)

BRASHIR - B BRE EITE
RN EEAECEBTHE
REEHTEHROEHBRAE
0.097% 7T ' A 0.10BTTHIRE
0.0187T  WRRHE &S
BEARRBBITRAF 2
FRZEE R - &6 0%

MRBFEEERE &

PRASHIR P E A 2 EBR B B E
ARRAB 2 EHAEBRE  BER
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25. RESERVES 25. %%
Group AEE
Cumulative
Contributed Treasury translation Accumulated
surplus shares adjustments losses Total
EfRs E#R ZHER AR ZitEE aE
(note(a))
(Wi (a)
Note HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
Wit AT FAT FAT FAT AT
Balances at Tst April 2012 H-B-—EMA-B7&H 1,240,238 (204) 29,08 (128.411) 1,140,651
Loss for the year ENER - - - (33,491) (33,491)
Currency translation differences EHL
of foreign operations RHHEEE - - 313 - 313
Share of other comprehensive Elhagtis
income of joint ventures A2 EkE - - 768 = 768
Total comprehensive income EnzEkneE
for the year — — 1,081 (33,491) (32,410)
Share repurchase Bk (b) - (54) = = (54)
Cancellation of shares repurchased  HEEER( (b) - 258 - (204) 54
Capital reduction (note 24(a)) RAE A 24z) 121,135 = = = 121,135
Special dividend (note 13) RRRE M 13) (269,188) = = = (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013 and RZE-=F=A=1-HEk
at 1st April 2013 “E-ZFNA-BER 1,092,185 - 30,109 (162,106) 960,188
Profit for the year ERGH - - - 47,150 47,150
Currency translation differences of @i ER 2 EBIREZE
foreign operations - - 210 - 210
Reclassification adjustment for AMBAIRIER AR
exchange diferences included Mt iza %L
in the consolidated statement 383
of profit or loss upon the ENHRRE
deconsolidation of a subsidiary - - 209 - 209
Reclassification adjustment for BHEAELE
exchange differences included M AR RERL
in the consolidated statement EXERIED
of profit or loss upon the disposal ~ EFAEAE
of joint ventures - - (32,289) - (32,289)
Share of other comprehensive income  EfGA 412
of joint ventures A 2EkRE - - 3,545 - 3,545
Total comprehensive income FREEYELE
for the year - - (28,265) 47,150 18,885
Balances at 31st March 2014 RIE-ME=A=T-HZ2&H% 1,092,185 - 1,844 (114,956) 979,073
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25. RESERVES (continued) 25. fREE)
Company AT
Contributed Treasury  Accumulated
surplus shares losses Total
EARH EER 4y | k]
Note HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FET FHET FHET FHET
Balances at 1st April 2012 R-ZE——4HMA—H
2B 1,240,238 (204) (103,844) 1,136,190
Loss for the year and total FABER
comprehensive income for FREHEKERE
the year — — (42,116) (42,116)
Share repurchase BERH (b) — (54) = (54)
Cancellation of shares HHEBRRR
repurchased (b) — 258 (204) 54
Capital reduction (note 24(a))  BRANBIBL(A72# 24(a)) 121,135 — — 121,135
Special dividend (note 13) KRR B (HzF 13) (269,188) — — (269,188)
Balances at 31st March 2013 RZZ—=F
and at 1st April 2013 =A=+-8Hk
“Z-=5WA—-H
b3 1,092,185 - (146,164) 946,021
Loss for the year and total FREER
comprehensive income for FRZEKE
the year A — — (15,696) (15,696)
Balances at 31st March 2014 R-ZZ-mF
“A=t+-Rz&4 1,092,185 - (161,860) 930,325
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31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

25. RESERVES (continued)

Company

(a)

(b)

Cumulative translation adjustments

The cumulative translation adjustments represent
cumulative foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy of foreign currencies, which

is set out in note 2.9 to the financial statements.

The following describes the shares repurchased and
cancelled by the Company during the prior year and
the number of shares described had not been adjusted
for the share consolidation as described in note 24(a)
that occurred subsequent to these repurchases and

cancellation.

During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Company
repurchased a total of 1,400,000 ordinary shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange and 6,570,000 shares
were cancelled by the Company. Upon the cancellation
of the 6,570,000 repurchased shares, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the par value of
HK$66,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the
shares of HK$204,000, including transaction costs, was
charged to the accumulated losses of the Company. As
at 31st March 2014 and 2013, no ordinary shares were

repurchased but not yet cancelled by the Company.

25. @&
AN

(a)

(b)

R ELZHE

BEELHBRERERT B E AN
XU BRERAESE 2 RFTEIH
EXERE  WREFMBHRKRME2.9
FRENSMNEIAE 2 ST R ERIR -

TXEEAARRRNBEFEBEDZ
B fp KRk $8 Z2 B Bt B fn 2 B
WARE BEE REHERETZR
& OF (GRERPN 5 24(a) BTt ) /£ i 73

= o

HE-_ZT—=Ff=ZA=+—A81t
FERN AR2RREIMBEREA
1,400,000/ A" R A E @R - M
6,570,000 AZAR 53 B AN A Bl FE8H ©
#18H6,570,000 IRERIRHE - AR
Al B #ITIRA 2 EH B R 2 66,000
Bt BERMEMX N2 E
204,000 T(BEXZKA)E &
RRARZ Bt EERHR R =T
—OER-_TE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—
B WELERCEARRERDRME
W ARFESH o
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

26. BORROWINGS

Borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand and are

analysed as follows:

Bank loans — unsecured*

RITER — BIER~

26.

—E-F
HK$’000
TET

2,600

2013
—E—=%F
HK$'000
FETT

16,504

* The loans have corporate guarantees given by the Company

and government guarantee given by the Government of the

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Notes:

(a) The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated

in Hong Kong dollar.

(b) The effective interest rates (per annum) of the bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period were 1.7% (2013: 1.7%-2.5%).

(c) The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate to

their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EZRERNREREMENKRIE
Company
¥ N
2014 2014 2013
—E-lmF —E2-mF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Trade and bills Z SN RIER
payables AT 62,985 88,311 — —
Accrual for operating st 48 45
expenses 32,062 42,999 1,107 1,305
Receipts in advance FBYZKIE 12,097 12,601 — —
Other payables H e 508 7,080 9,352 — —
114,224 153,263 1,107 1,305
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on B EMNREBERENZRBEEEZEHE 2
invoice date, is as follows: BEER DTN T -
Group
2013
—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
90 days or less 90 HE LA T~ 58,275 81,058
91 to 180 days 91 HZ=180H 2,273 1,061
181 to 270 days 181 HZ270H 237 2,992
271 to 365 days 271 H&E 365 H 627 779
Over 365 days B8 365 H 1,573 2,421
62,985 88,311
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27. ESREAREREMENSRES)
The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are BEREMNREREMNZE ZEmENL T
denominated in the following currencies: B REBN

Group

AEE
2014 2013
ik =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 5,123 6,836
US dollar ETT 15,000 23,528
RMB AR 1,187 728
Japanese Yen =1 39,006 49,338
Others currencies Hih g 2,669 7,881
Total o 62,985 88,311
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31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

28. PROVISIONS 28. &
Group rEE
Reinstatement Onerous
costs contracts Total
EREA BEEH R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
31st March 2013 —E-==A=+—H
At 1st April 2012 N-E——FPMA—H 6,377 38,034 44 411
Amounts utilised during the year FREH 2 &% (1,041) (7,922) (8,963)
Reversal of unutilised amounts  #[EI KB H 45 (536) (15,056) (15,592)
Increase in discounted amounts P B 557 4 M 25 4 2
arising from the passage of ALIR SRR AN
time — 3,404 3,404
At 31st March 2013 RZTE—=F
=A=+—H 4,800 18,460 23,260
Less: Current portion B RENER S (1,200) (9,300) (10,500)
Non-current portion at R-_E—=F
31st March 2013 (note 30) =A=+—H82
SERE B (M2 30) 3,600 9,160 12,760
31st March 2014 —E-ME=A=+—H
At 1st April 2013 N-_ZT—=FmWH—H 4,800 18,460 23,260
Amounts utilised during the year FAEHEZ &5 (798) (2,818) (3,616)
Reversal of unutilised amounts BRI EFH S5 (178) (4,349) (4,527)
Increase in discounted amounts & B &7 4 i 2= 4 2
arising from the passage of ALER & ZEIE N
time —_ 811 811
Disposals HEEHE (3,824) (12,104) (15,928)
At 31st March 2014 N-ZT—POE
—A=+—H — — —
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

29.

DEFERRED TAX

29.

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences

under the liability method using the applicable tax rates which

are expected to apply at the time of reversal of the temporary

differences.

The movements in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as

follows:

BREFIEDRABERARANERER
BOEEA ERAREAERZERZ 2@

EREBHEAE(AE)FHEIEHMT

Group
AEE

2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

At beginning of year F4 (417) 1,536
Recognised in the statement of profit or ~ RIEZFKRER

loss (15) (1,990)

Exchange realignment bE X F % (6) 37

At end of year FIR (438) (417)

Representing: R :
Deferred tax liabilities EER B A E (438) (417)

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA
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31st March 2014 —E—NF=HA=+—H

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities), without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

29. EEBIE(#)

I A AR AR FLAE B E NS

BT EEREAE /(AR 228N
TS
Provision
of trade

Accelerated

receivables

tax and
depreciation inventories Total
B 2 EWHIE
R IE TR REERE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET
At 1st April 2012 R-_ZE——FMA—H (426) 1,962 1,636
Recognised in the statement of RIERKRER
profit or loss (259) (1,731) (1,990)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 B — 37 37
At 31st March 2013 and 1st RZZE—=F
April 2013 =A=+—8xK
—ZT—mENA—H (685) 268 (417)
Recognised in the statement of RIEZEKRIER
profit or loss (15) — (15)
Exchange realignment P& 5 8 (6) — (6)
At 31st March 2014 N_E—OE
=A=+—H (706) 268 (438)
As at 31st March 2014, the Group had unrecognised deferred RZZE—NE=A=+—H A&EEZK

tax assets of HK$20,517,000 (2013: HK$51,096,000), primarily
representing the tax effect of cumulative tax losses (subject
to agreement by relevant tax authorities) which can be carried
forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

T SRR JE 7 18 & 7= 4920,517,000 7 T(=
T— =4 :51,096,00087T) TEKHEER
SAREER(ASFEENBHRERE) 2
C RS EA BRI - ARZ
EHERBE —BREBESEBEZHBA
Al + B R KATREH B AR 7t A1) A LA S A
WA E % S E R

By 486
S B

HERE

RAE T IR
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

29.

30.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. REIEFIE &)
Pursuant to the Mainland China enterprise income tax law, a RIFFR B A EMBERE - RRRERAH
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign B BISNE (R EEMEIMEEET IR ZARE
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established HEMI0% BT - ZEREHR_-TZ
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1st NF—A—BRERVBEAN_ZZLF
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31st December TZA=tT—BZRBREAZAF o HMPE
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is A ELGIME E & PR el AR E] B R IE
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of WiE B E @ AR 2 B E - 5
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% AREEMmME  EAMNER/E%HK10% °
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes It - NEBEZAERER R RAMK T 2 KB
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established RABA_EENF—A—HEBELZA
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1st AR EE 2 iR EBAMTENT -
January 2008.
As at 31st March 2014 and 2013, there were no significant RZE—OERZTE—=F=A=+—
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities for taxes that would B AEBRFRHEAH 2B AR ZKE
be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s AR E 2 FIE - WA E KR ERIEE
subsidiaries in Mainland China. MIBELE -
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 30. HttERBAE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-—nmF —E—=%F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FHETL
Employee benefits EE®F 398 628
Provision for reinstatement costs  1ER & A& E 28 - 3,600
Provision for onerous contracts BEG KRS 28 — 9,160
398 13,388
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31.

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

31.

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to net cash

flows used in operating activities:

CEMERZRS

BRETEBATRT, (BB BE L BB HRE
RzReREFEIHRE :

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(&E75)
Profit/(loss) before income tax: BRETSH A F ()
From continuing operations REFERLEER 12,988 (33,936)
From a discontinued operation RE RIS ET 37,444 4,556
Adjustments for: FHEE .
Finance income Zupi Y ON (5,592) (3,718)
Finance costs B8 A 130 5,392
Share of profits and losses of joint JEMR A &R REE
ventures 3,472 (2,052)
Depreciation of property, plant and VI BB R EITE
equipment 5,251 4,519
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  BERZEZ
equipment W zs (1,179) (1,131)
Write-off of property, plant and VI~ R M ekt il aE
equipment — 269
Reversal of provision for impairment of & 5 I WK TE R E
trade and other receivables, net FEWGRIE R E
B imFHE (62) —
Impairment of investments in joint REEEEZIRERE
ventures —_ 45,273
Gain on disposal of a discontinued B R E 2 W
operation (37,334) —
Gain on disposal of joint ventures HEAGENEZ R (23,835) —
(8,717) 19,172
Increase in inventories FEZEM (1,480) (668)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 FE kT8 K H fth fE Uk
receivables RIAZ D 11,803 67,423
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 FE S 5k IE R H Ath fE AT
KIEZ WD (14,710) (75,686)
Increase/(decrease) in severance and BEE AR IREA 238 0
retirement benefits JCR) (112) 97
Decrease in an amount due from a joint ~ EUA L DEFIEZ FHD
venture — 305
Decrease in provisions B 2R (8,143) (24,555)
Net cash flows used in operations LEMERAZREREFRE (21,359) (13,912)
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31st March 2014 —E—HFE=A=+—H

32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the Company provided
a guarantee of all obligations payable to BK Asiapac Pte. Ltd.
(“BKAP”) with respect to its branded food operation. As at
31st March 2013, the Group’s outstanding balance payable
to BKAP amounted to HK$450,000. The guarantee had been

released upon disposal of the discontinued operation during

the year.

As at 31st March 2014, the Company had provided
guarantees of HK$318,425,000 (2013: HK$508,826,000) with
respect to banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries.
As at 31st March 2014, the banking facilities granted to its
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of HK$50,217,000 (2013:
HK$78,654,000). The Company’s directors and the Group’s
management anticipate that no material liabilities will arise

from such guarantees which arose in the ordinary course of

business.

As at 31st March 2013, the Company had provided
guarantees of HK$121,840,000 with respect to banking
facilities made available to its joint ventures. As at 31st
March 2013, the banking facilities granted to its joint ventures
subject to guarantees given to banks by the Company were
utilised to the extent of HK$51,759,000. The guarantees had

been released upon the Coland Disposal during the year.

33. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$283,516,000 (2013: HK$501,839,000) from several banks
for loans and trade financing. As at 31st March 2014, banking
facilities of HK$50,217,000 were utilised by the Group (2013:

HK$78,654,000).

These facilities were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees of HK$318,425,000 (2013:

HK$508,826,000) provided by the Company; and

(i) a government guarantee of HK$2,600,000 (20183:
HK$19,200,000) provided by the Government of the

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

NORTH ASIA STRATEGIC HOLDINGS LIMITED 1t sREEIZBRBRAA

32.

33.

P RAR

HE-_Z-—=F=ZA=1+—HLEFE &
NAIEFEMERMEERBK Asiapac
Pte. Ltd. ([BKAPDIREE2MEE EHEIR -
MNZZT—=FE=ZA=+—0  AEEEHN
BKAP 2 7K 8 & % £ /% 450,000 8 7T © #&
RENEAN L ER IS EBERERR

R-ZZE—ME=ZA=+—8 ' XQFEE
MEAMB AR ERMEZRITHERMSE
¥& R 318,425,000 T(= T — = F :
508,826,000/ 7T ) © N = & — M F =
A=+—HB BETHEHNRBAR ZRT
MEEERRQAABITREER) B
E ) 50,217,000 ;t(=Z & — = F :
78,654,000 7TT) - A ABIZEERAE
ErERERATgAZEROREATEE
BBaE)MEELEANALE -

R-ZZE—ZF=ZA=+—8 ' XQFEE
MEEECEERBE ZRITHMERGE
R 121,840,000 8T - R=ZE—=F=H
=T H BTHAECEZRITRE
(BEARAAMBTREER) R EFA
51,759,000 7T « F A » ERE R = HEH
EEIBEME o

RITRE
RZEBE-—MWME=A=+—H8B ' ~"&E
REAETROZEZRLRESREZRF
17 Bl & /5283,516,000/8 jL(=— & — =
& 501,839,000/ 7T ) R =T — I
FZRA=1+—"H %ZEMECEAE
8) F§50,217,000/%8 T(Z & — = F :
78,654,000/ 7T) °
ZEBMEAT A A AR
(i) ARaEREzAFPER318,425,000
(= F — =4 : 508,826,000
o) &
(i) BB HRITTEE BT 1R 4 2,600,000
7 Jo(— T — = £ : 19,200,000
TC) Z BT HER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st March 2014 —ZE—HWF=A=+—H
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. KEHERH
As lessee ERABEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses AEERBEZHELCEHELHEEERT
and shops under operating lease arrangements. The leases MAEYE -  EERIEH ZEWEZZ
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from EHBANTFAFEIFETE -
one to three years.
At 31st March 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZE—NF=A=+—8 ' AEERE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due LI HEEEEHE - RARREREZ
as follows: RS BRER T EREEE
Group
AEE
2013
—E-=4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT F&T
Within one year 1EAR 7,454 30,777
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FO2FRESF
(BEEREME) 3,921 24,013
11,375 54,790
In respect of the above non-cancellable operating lease mEM AR ETHEmMSs ' R T
commitments, the following provision for onerous contracts Sl E R A 4B
had been recognised:
Group
KEE
2013
=%
HK$'000
FET
Onerous lease contracts (note 28) B8 E 8 (Kt 28)
Within one year 1FUAA 9,300
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoFEFESF(BIEERME) 9,160
18,460
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31st March 2014 —E—WF=A=+—H
35. COMMITMENTS 35. EiE
As at 31st March 2014, neither the Group nor the Company RZZE—NE=RA=+—H AKBEHAK
had any significant capital commitments or contingent ARAMEEMNEREARRKEXKABE
liabilities (2013: Nil). (ZZ—=F #|) -
As at 31st March 2013, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ RZE—=F=RA=+—H  K~EEEH
own capital commitments was as follows: BEDPEARE 2 ERAENT :
2013
—E-=%F
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment: M - BB REE
Contracted, but not provided for EET4 - [BREE 12,457
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEHEEE A LT 2R S
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BUESEHEBRREMITLoFu 232
these financial statements, the Group had the following SN REBNERNERBEEALTAH
transaction with a related party during the year: TR S -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hst FHET FET
A joint venture: BEBE
Guarantee fee income ERERARA (i) — 759
(i) The guarantee fee income arose from the (iy ZARAMEEEEHERHEZIR
guarantee provided by the Company with respect 1TRLVE B R WA E £ R
to banking facilities made available to its joint SEZ05%ZERER -
ventures, which in return received a guarantee fee MEAZERERBIWA R
based on 0.5% of the guaranteed amounts. The ERENSEHESERER
guarantee had been released upon the Coland K o

Disposal during the year.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Balances with subsidiaries

The current portions of balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable/payable within a

year.

As at 31st March 2014, the non-current portions of
balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and not repayable within one year.

As at 31st March 2013, the non-current portions of
balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within one year, except for an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$40,601,000 that bore

interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum.

Key management compensation of the Group

36. HEEALZRS &)
(b) EEMERATEZ#s%

EY] PNCEE TR Y
W 2RRBE—ERER B
fit o

R-ZE—ME=F=+—H - H}
BRAIZEHRZIERB B BEER
a8 BEAER -FRNERSE -

RZZE—Z=F=RA=+—8H " B
BRARAZEHRZIFRB AN HEE
e 2EHBAE-—FRNEE H#
JE Y Ff |88 2~ ] 2 3} IE 40,601,000 7
TTRREEFME10ER -

(c) ZAEBETEZEEEAEHE

2014 2013

—ZE-lmF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL 6,592 5,056
Retirement benefits — defined BREFN — RE

contribution schemes MG E 30 30

Termination benefits BEBAE A — 1,500

6,622 6,586

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.

During the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013, the

Company did not have any connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

BEEM e 2 — P HEBINY R

KHIFES °
BE_ZT—NUWFER_ZFT—=F=ZA=+—
BIEFE  ARRBHEEMAIZER LR
A 20 EFTATZBER FHIFEBER
% o
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31st March 2014 —Z—FE=A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. BEHE s 2EMIA
All financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the REBRARGRZZE-—MOFR_ZT—=
Company as at 31st March 2014 and 31st March 2013 were FZA=+—HZFABcREEREED
loans and receivables, and financial liabilities stated at Rl 4 5 SR K JE MR IR R AR B S K AR B BR 2
amortised cost, respectively. SREE -

38. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 38. LEBEZF
The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re- LEBREEERELEY  BIORFRKIEZ
presented as if the operation discontinued during the year BRI E KR IE(FHFE12) ©

had been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative
period (note 12).
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